Public Document Pack

ISLINGTON

Resources Department
Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD

AGENDA FOR THE AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE (ADVISORY)

Members of the Audit Committee and Audit Committee (Advisory) are summoned to a
virtual meeting to be held by Zoom on 16 March 2021 at 7.00 pm.

Linzi Roberts-Egan
Chief Executive

Link to the meeting: https://weareislington.zoom.us/j/95065724255

Enquiries to :  Mary Green

Tel : 020 7527 3005

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk

Despatched : 8 March 2021

Membership Substitute Members
Councillor Nick Wayne (Chair) Councillor Jenny Kay
Councillor Andy Hull (Vice-Chair) Councillor Roulin Khondoker
Councillor Troy Gallagher Councillor Flora Williamson
Councillor Anjna Khurana Councillor John Woolf

Alan Begg (Independent member)
Alan Finch (Independent member)

Quorum: is 3 Councillors



https://weareislington.zoom.us/j/95065724255

Formal Matters Page
Apologies for absence

Declaration of substitute members

Declarations of interest

If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business:
= if itis not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the
existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it
becomes apparent;
= you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that
is already in the register in the interests of openness and
transparency.
In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in
discussion of the item.

If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to
speak or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details
of it at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may
participate in the discussion and vote on the item.

*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or
vocation carried on for profit or gain.

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of
your expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your
election; including from a trade union.

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works,
between you or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a
beneficial interest) and the council.

(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s

area.

(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a
month or longer.

(f) Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a
body in which you or your partner have a beneficial interest.

(g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has
a place of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nhominal
value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that body or of any one class of its issued
share capital.

This applies to all members present at the meeting.

Minutes of previous meeting 1-6

Appointments to Pensions Board and Personnel Sub-Committee 7-10



Items for Decision Page

External Auditor reports 11 -84
Risk management update - February 2021 85 - 88
Internal Audit update - February 2021 89 - 92
Revocation of Exit Payment Regulations 93 - 96
Whistleblowing report - 1 April 2020 to 31 January 2021 97 - 100

Urgent non-exempt items
Exclusion of press and public

Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered
urgently by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will
be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.

Confidential/exempt items

Whistleblowing report - 1 April 2020 to 31 January 2021 - exempt 101 - 116
appendix

Revocation of Exit Payment Regulations - exempt appendix 117 - 120
Urgent exempt items (if any)

Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently
by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be
agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.

The next meeting of the Audit Committee and Audit Committee (Advisory) will be on
25 May 2021



This page is intentionally left blank



186

187

188

189

190

Agenda ltem A4

London Borough of Islington
Audit Committee and Audit Committee (Advisory) - 25 January 2021
Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee and Audit Committee (Advisory)
held via Zoom on 25 January 2021 at 7.00 pm.
Present: Councillors: Nick Wayne (Chair), Andy Hull (Vice-Chair), Troy

Gallagher and Anjna Khurana

Independent
members:  Alan Begg and Alan Finch

Observer: Councillor Satnam Gill
Councillor Nick Wayne in the Chair

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A1)
None.

DECLARATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A2)
None.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A3)

Councillor Satnam Gill declared an interest in agenda item B3, Whistleblowing
Policy, as a member of the Hilldrop Area Community Association, referred to in
Appendix 3 of the report.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS (Item A4)

RESOLVED:

That, subject to an amendment to minute 157 of the minutes of the meeting held
on 29 September 2020 — Personnel Sub-Committee (b) — to change the date
specified from “2019/2020” to “2020/2021", the minutes of the ordinary meeting
held on 29 September 2020 and the additional meetings held on 30 October and
24 November 2020 be confirmed as a correct record and the Chair be authorised to
sign them.

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE (Item B1)

In response to questions about lessons learned from the recent public interest
reports issued to Croydon and Nottingham, officers confirmed that both reports had
been studied in depth. However, there was little comparison between Islington and
those two authorities, given Islington’s different risk profile. With regard to Angelic
Energy, referenced in the Nottingham report, Islington would ensure that, as part of

Igage 1



191

192

Audit Committee and Audit Committee (Advisory) - 25 January 2021

learning from that report, due diligence was carried out before any arrangements or
partnerships were entered into.

In response to a question from one of the Independent Members about the need
for reports on Risk Management Strategy and Framework to be submitted to the
Committee, the Head of Internal Audit undertook to share the Framework, which
was currently being refreshed, with the Committee. The Chair asked that the
Framework be circulated to members of the Committee within 14 days.

The Committee noted that there was uncertainty around risks associated with Brexit
and lockdown 3, although the Council’s Gold and Resilience Teams met weekly to
review the situation. Financial spend was of necessity large during lockdown, but
under control and the Council had accessed Government Covid grants.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the contents of the report of the Corporate Director of Finance, comprising
an update on risk management activity that had taken place since the last
comprehensive Principal Risk Report to Committee in September 2020, be noted.
(b) That the Risk Management Framework be circulated to members of the
Committee within 14 days of this meeting.

2020 - 21 INTERNAL AUDIT INTERIM REPORT (Item B2)
Internal Audit officers were complimented on the high quality of their reports.

Referring to various projects in Appendix 2 of the report, questions were asked
about areas where the overall assurance statements were less than ‘moderate’
and whether it would be possible for the Committee to be advised of actions and
outcomes on the “deep dives” carried out on certain projects. It was noted that a
Finance Control Board had been established to follow up any projects which had
been designated as ‘limited assurance’ in Resources Department.

The Chair suggested that members advise him of particular projects where they had
concerns and wished to see follow up action.

The Committee was reassured by the Corporate Director of Environment and
Regeneration that the findings from the Parking audit had been addressed.

RESOLVED:
That the contents of the report of the Corporate Director of Resources, detailing
progress on delivery of the Internal Audit Plan, be noted.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY UPDATE (Item B3)

RESOLVED:
That the revised Whistleblowing policy at Appendix 1 to the report of the Corporate
Director of Resources, including amendments as highlighted, be approved.

Pzage 2



193

194

195

Audit Committee and Audit Committee (Advisory) - 25 January 2021

NEXT STEPS ON STRATEGY AND CHANGE - UPDATE SINCE MAY 2020
(Item B4)

RESOLVED:

(a) That the report of the Corporate Director of Resources, updating the Committee
on the implementation of new arrangements for Strategy and Change within the
Council and progress in key areas, be noted.

(b) That a further report be submitted to the Committee in six months time on
progress on the Change Management Programme.

HOUSING OMBUDSMAN COMPLAINT HANDLING CODE (Item B5)

RESOLVED:

(a) That the following be noted:

(i) The Housing Ombudsman’s Complaint Handling Code July 2020, attached at
Appendix 1 to the report of the Corporate Director of Resources.

(ii) The completed self-assessment form at Appendix 2 to the report, which had to
be completed by 31 December 2020 and reported to “elected members”.

(iii) Failure to comply with the conditions of membership might result in an
Ombudsman’s determination of complaint handling failure and order to rectify
within a given timescale.

(iv) Failures under the Scheme and Code would result in a complaint handling
failure order.

(v) The Housing Ombudsman expected landlords to publish the outcome of their
self-assessments and could request sight of the assessment and evidence in support
and could require landlords to periodically repeat the self- assessment, following
any amendments to the Code or significant change to landlords’ organisational
structure.

(b) That the Corporate Director of Housing be requested to ask housing associations
in the Borough to share their complaints results and learning with the Council.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT & SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN (LGSCO) ANNUAL
REVIEW PERFORMANCE REPORT 2020 (Item B6)

Following questions from members, confirmation was given that, apart from the
final page of the exempt appendices at agenda item E2, wherein the name of the
complainant was visible, the other two appendices were non-exempt.

RESOLVED:

That the following be noted:

(a) The Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman’s (LGSCO) Annual Review
letter dated 22 July 2020, as detailed in Appendix 1 of the report of the Corporate
Director of Resources.

(b) Of the 24 cases investigated, 17 were upheld and 7 cases were not upheld.
(c) 5 out of the 17 upheld cases received a satisfactory remedy before the
Ombudsman’s involvement.

(d) 9 out of the 9 cases recommended during 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020
(100%) complied with the Ombudsman’s recommendations.

Igage 3



196

197

Audit Committee and Audit Committee (Advisory) - 25 January 2021

(e) 3 out of the 17 cases were resolved during LGSCO investigation requiring no
further compliance.

(f) Separate to the complaints investigated by the LGSCO reported in the Annual
Review Letter, 3 upheld decisions during the period in question (finding of
maladministration) were decided by the Housing Ombudsman, as detailed in
Appendix 2 to the report.

(9) In line with the statutory duty under section 5A (2) of the Local

Government and Housing Act 1989, the Monitoring Officer provided this annual
report to Audit Committee.

COUNCIL TAX BASE (Item B7)

The Committee noted that, as the current budget had been set before the
pandemic, no specific provision had been made for Covid19 spend. However, the
Council had financial mechanisms in place for withstanding shocks.

RESOLVED:

(a) That it be noted that the cost of local council tax support in 2021/22 and over
the medium term, as detailed in paragraph 4.1.2 and Appendix A of the report of
the Corporate Director of Resources, was highly uncertain.

(b) That approval be given to the council tax base for the whole area for 2021/22
(or until rescinded) of 77,737.1 Band D equivalent properties, after adjusting for
non-collection.

(c) That the council tax base for meeting the special expenses issued by the Lloyd
Square Garden Committee for 2021/22 (or until rescinded) shall be 44.2 Band D
equivalent properties, after adjusting for non-collection.

(d) That the council tax forecast for 2020/21, detailed in paragraph 5.3 and Table 1
and Appendix C of the report, be noted.

THE INTRODUCTION OF EXIT PAYMENTS CAP ON
REDUNDANCY/EFFICIENCY RETIREMENTS (Item B8)

The Acting Director of Law and Governance provided the following advice to the
Committee:

“The report covers the position generally at the present time. It is best not to seek
to put a gloss on it. Individual cases will have to be considered in accordance with
the circumstances when they arise.

The consequences for the Council in relation to voluntary redundancies include that
they can be postponed until current uncertainties are resolved. However, this is not
going to be any time soon. It appears that the LGPS Regulations are not going to be
amended until after the Court case. They are likely then to be amended to the
detriment of staff and to the financial benefit of the employing authority. The Court
case is not being heard until 25/26 March. Judgment is likely to be reserved. There
may well be an appeal, etc. There may be complaints in the meantime to the
Pensions Ombudsman. The likely but uncertain length of any such postponement
may have massive operational downsides, not least in the context of restructurings,
and financial disadvantages.

P4age 4



198

199

Audit Committee and Audit Committee (Advisory) - 25 January 2021

However, if voluntary redundancies are to proceed during the period of non-
alignment of the public sector cap and changes to the LGPS Regulations and before
the uncertainties are resolved then (1) there are risks for both parties in relation to
pension strain in the case of those aged 55 and over, and (2) these risks must not
be sought to be removed in an age discriminatory way.

The recommendations in the report seek to minimise and mitigate these risks.”

RESOLVED:

(a) That the current redundancy/efficiency policy be revised so that, where an
employee’s exit payments breach the £95K cap, the staff member may exercise the
option of reducing elements of their redundancy package, other than pension strain
cost and statutory redundancy payment, in order to bring the total to under £95K
and therefore be eligible to claim an unreduced pension.

(b) That, where the pension strain costs are in excess of £95K, an employee

may use their own funds to lower the reductions applied to their LGPS benefits.

(c) That the changes proposed to the redundancy policy and detailed in the report
of the Corporate Director of Resources apply to all relevant Council employees,
including at Islington schools.

(d) That, in instances where the value of paying the pension strain would exceed
the cap, an additional discretion to allow exit payments to be

made up to the balance of the £95K cap under Regulation 8 of the Restriction of
Public Sector Exit Payment Regulations 2020, be approved.

(e) That it be noted that any significant individual decisions that needed to be made
in relation to the enacting of provisions within the change of the policy would be
brought for approval to the Audit Committee meeting scheduled for the 16 March
2021.

EXEMPT MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS (Item E1)

RESOLVED:

That the exempt minutes of the meetings held on 30 October 2020 and

24 November 2020 be confirmed as a correct record and the Chair be authorised to
sign them.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT & SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN (LGSCO) ANNUAL
REVIEW PERFORMANCE REPORT 2020 - EXEMPT APPENDICES (Item E2)

RESOLVED:
That the final page of the exempt appendix at agenda item E2 and the fact that the
other two appendices were non-exempt, be noted.

The meeting ended at 9.00 pm

CHAIR

Igage 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem A5
& ISLINGTON

Revised
Governance and Human Resources
Town Hall
Upper Street
London N1 2UD

Report of : Director of Law and Governance and Monitoring Officer

Meeting of Date Agenda Item Ward(s)
Audit Committee 16 March 2021 n/a
Delete as Non-exempt
appropriate

Subject: AUDIT COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 2020/21

1.

Synopsis

1. In accordance with its Terms of Reference, the Audit Committee is responsible for the
appointment of members to the Personnel and Pensions Sub-Committees and the
Pensions Board.

2. Following the resignation of Councillor Paul Smith from the Council, there is a vacancy
for an employer representative on the Pensions Board. Councillor Smith was the Chair of
the Board, so a vacancy has also arisen for that position.

3. This report seeks agreement to the appointments of Councillor Michelline Safi-Ngongo,
Executive Member for Children, Young People and Families, as a substitute member on
the Personnel Sub-Committee, and Councillor Richard Watts as a member of and Chair to
the Pensions Board to replace Councillor Paul Smith.

Recommendations

(a) To appoint Councillor Michelline Safi-Ngongo as a substitute member on the
Personnel Sub-Committee for the municipal year 2020/21, or until a successor is
appointed.

(b) To appoint Councillor Richard Watts a member and Chair of the Pensions Board to
replace Councillor Paul Smith for the municipal year 2020/21, or until a successor is
appointed

Page 7



3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.3

Background

A vacancy for a substitute member on the Personnel Sub-Committee has occurred due to
the fact that Councilllor Kaya Comer has stepped down as a member of the Executive.
Councillor Michellline Safi-Ngongo, the current Executive Member for Children, Young
People and Families, has been nominated as her successor. All members of the Executive
are substitutes on the Personnel Sub-Committee.

Councillor Paul Smith has resigned from the Council, giving rise to a vacancy for an
employer representative on the Pensions Board. Councillor Smith was also the Chair of the
Board. Councillor Richard Watts has been nominated as his successor as an employer
representative of the Board and its Chair.

Implications

Financial Implications

None

Legal Implications

These are set out in the report.

Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon
Islington by 2030
There are no environmental impacts arising from this report.

Resident Impact Assessment

The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to
eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of
opportunity, and foster good relations, between those who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 2010). The council
has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or minimise disadvantages, take
steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities,
and encourage people to participate in public life. The council must have due regard to
the need to tackle prejudice and promote understanding.

A resident impact assessment has not been carried out since the contents of this report
relate to a purely administrative function and will not impact on residents.

Conclusion and reasons for recommendation

Approval to the recommendations is needed to ensure that the Personnel Sub-Committee
and the Pensions Board are properly constituted.

Page 8



Background papers:
None.

Final Report Clearance

Signed by
"Director of Law and Governance and
Monitoring Officer
Report author Mary Green
Tel 020 7527 3005
E-mail mary.green@islington.gov.uk

Page 9

15 March 2021



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item B1
ISLINGTON

Resources
7 Newington Barrow Way
London N7 7EP

Report of: Corporate Director of Resources

Meeting of Date Agenda Item Ward(s)
Audit Committee 16 March 2021 All
Delete as Non-exempt

appropriate

—
‘

SUBJECT: External Auditor Reports

1.  Synopsis

1.1 Grant Thornton UK LLP is presenting a series of reports to the Committee. This includes
their Annual Audit Letter for the year ending 31 March 2020 and audit plan for the external
audit of the Council and the Pension Fund for 2020/21. The documents provided also
include a summary of the changes being implemented in the way the Value for Money audit
is performed and a document summarising management responses to the enquiries raised
with the Council as part of the audit planning process.

2. Recommendations

2.1 To note the contents of the General Enquiries of Management and approve the External
Audit Plan for the Council and Pension Fund for the year ending 31 March 2021.

2.2  To note the Annual Audit Letter and Value for Money (VFM) slides.

3. Background

3.1 Each year the Council’s external auditor presents to the Audit Committee their audit plan.
This year it is also proposed to present the General Enquiries of Management as part of the
planning process.

4. Implications

Page 11



41

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

Financial Implications: none
Legal Implications: none

Environmental Implications and contribution to net zero carbon by 2030.
There are no environmental impacts arising from this report.

Resident Impact Assessment

The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportunity, and
foster good relations, between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 2010). The council has a duty to have
due regard to the need to remove or minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in
particular steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to
participate in public life. The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice
and promote understanding.

A resident impact assessment has not been carried out since the contents of this report

relate to a purely administrative function and there are no direct impacts on residents.

Conclusion and reasons for recommendations:

The Committee is asked to note the contents and approve the attached audit plan and
general enquiries of management and to note the annual audit letter and VFM slides.

Appendices:

Annual Audit Letter year ending 31 March 2020

VFM slides

External Audit Plan year ending 31 March 2021

General Enquiries of Management — Islington Council and Islington Council Pension Fund

Background papers: none

Final Report Clearance:

Signed by:

Corporate Director of Resources Date 08/03/2021

Page 12



Report Author: Mumba Mumba, Strategic Revenue Manager
Tel: 020 7527 2432
E-mail: mumba.mumba@islington.gov.uk

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



o Grant Thornton

The Annual Audit Letter
for Islington Council

.-
Y@r ended 31 March 2020

Jalfiuary 2021
o1




Commercial in confidence

Contents

Section
1. Executive Summary
000 2. Audit of the Financial Statements
w 3. Value for Money conclusion

Your key Grant Thornton Appendix

team members are: A  Reports issued and fees
-
g Paul Grady
@ Key Audit Partner
= b
5 T: 0207728 2301

E: Paul.D.Grady@uk.gt.com

Ade Oyerinde
Senior Audit Manager
T: 020 7728 3332
E: Ade.O.Oyerinde@uk.gt.com

Marc Chang

Assistant Manager
T: 020 7728 3066
E: Marc.Chang@uk.gt.com

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

Page

14



Commercial in confidence

Executive Summary

Purpose

Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the
work that we have carried out at Islington Council ( the Council) for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to
the Council and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to
draw to the attention of the public. In preparing this Letter, we have followed
the National Audit Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice and Auditor
Guidance Note (AGN) 07 — 'Auditor Reporting'. We reported the detailed
findings from our audit work to the Council's Audit Committee and Audit
Committee (Advisory) as those charged with governance in our Audit
Findings Report on 29 September 2020.

Ou,erork

Respective responsibilities

We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAQO's Code of Audit Practice,

which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the

Act). Our key responsibilities are to:

e give an opinion on the Council’s financial statements (section two)

e assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section
three).

In our audit of the Council’s financial statements, we comply with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the NAO.

Q)
M%riality We determined materiality for the audit of the Council's financial statements to be as follows:
- ® Financial statements: £16,500,000, which is 1.5% of the Council's gross expenditure, and
~ e Pension Fund: £13,500,000, which is 1.0% of the Council’s Pension Fund net assets.
Financial Statements opinion We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 30 November 2020. We also gave an unqualified

opinion on the consistency of the pension fund financial statements included in the Pension Fund Annual Report on 13 January

2021.

We included an emphasis of matter paragraph in both reports above in respect of the uncertainty over valuations of the Council's
land and buildings, investment properties and the pension fund investments given the Coronavirus pandemic. This does not
affect our opinion that the statements give a true and fair view of the Council's financial position and its income and expenditure

for the year.

Whole of Government Accounts Our work on the Council’s consolidation return following guidance issued by the NAO will be completed once HM Treasury
(WGA) resolve issues they are experiencing with the Return.

Use of statutory powers We did not identify any matters which required us to exercise our additional statutory powers.

Value for Money arrangements We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. We reflected this in our audit report to the Council on 30 November 2020.

Certificate We plan to certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Islington Council once we are able to complete
our work on the WGA Return. This is delayed due to external problems with the HM Treasury reporting system.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021



Commercial in confidence

Executive Summary

Working with the Council

The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic had led to unprecedented uncertainty for all organisations, requiring urgent business continuity arrangements
to be implemented. The impact was widespread causing volatility of financial and property markets which impacted on the Council’s asset and pension fund
valuations. Additionally, changes in the regulatory framework introduced increased supervision and leadership, as well as challenge and scepticism in areas such
as journals, estimates, financial resilience and information provided by the Council.

Unsurprisingly, we experienced some delays during the audit as a result of the outbreak. In line with government directives, both the production and audit of the
financial statements were done remotely. Furthermore, obtaining and reviewing of audit evidence remotely proved more challenging and took longer than it would
normally take to review. Our audit testing of information provided by the Council was completed remotely. The combination of remote working and the challenges
of gaining an understanding of complex spreadsheets via video links impacted on the length of time to complete the audit. Notwithstanding these significant
cg?llenge, we completed the Council’s audit by the statutory deadline.

«Q
@D

e would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff.
0o

Grant Thornton UK LLP
January 2021

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021 4



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Our audit approach

Materiality

In our audit of the Council's financial statements, we use the concept of
materiality to determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in
evaluating the results of our work. We define materiality as the size of the
misstatement in the financial statements that would lead a reasonably
knowledgeable person to change or influence their economic decisions.

We determined materiality for the audit of the Council’s financial statements
as follows:
¢ Financial statements: to be £16,500,000, which is 1.5% of the Council’s
ross revenue expenditure, and
o Fension Fund: to be £13,500,000, which is 1.0% of the Council’'s Pension
MFund net assets.
|_\
V\igused these benchmarks as, in our view, users of the Council's financial
statements are most interested in where the Council has spent its revenue in
the year.

No specific other materiality levels were set during the course of our audit.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

The scope of our audit

Our audit involves obtaining sufficient evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are free from material

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether:

¢ the accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed;

¢ the significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and

¢ the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view.

We also read the remainder of the financial statements and Annual Governance
Statement published alongside the financial statements to check it is consistent with
our understanding of the Council and with the financial statements included in the
Annual Report on which we gave our opinion.

We read the accompanying pension fund financial statements were consistent, in all
material respects, with the audited financial statements in accordance with proper
practices as defined in the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority
accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 and applicable law.

We carried out our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) and the NAO Code of Audit
Practice. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business
and was risk based.

We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to
these risks and the results of this work.



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks

These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan (including Applicable
Audit Plan Addendum) to
Covid — 19 Council and

Pension Fund
The global outbreak of the Covid -19 virus pandemic has led

to unprecedented uncertainty for all organisations, requiring

urgent business continuity arrangements to be implemented.
We expect current circumstances will have an impact on the
production and audit of the financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2020, including and not limited to;

° mote working arrangements and redeployment of staff
critical front line duties may impact on the quality and
Ming of the production of the financial statements, and

& evidence we can obtain through physical observation

° @atility of financial and property markets will increase
the uncertainty of assumptions applied by management
to asset valuation and receivable recovery estimates,
and the reliability of evidence we can obtain to
corroborate management estimates

e Financial uncertainty will require management to
reconsider financial forecasts supporting their going
concern assessment and whether material uncertainties
for a period of at least 12 months from the anticipated
date of approval of the audited financial statements have
arisen; and

e Disclosures within the financial statements will require
significant revision to reflect the unprecedented situation
and its impact on the preparation of the financial
statements as at 31 March 2020 in accordance with
IAS1, particularly in relation to material uncertainties.

We therefore identified the global outbreak of the Covid-19
virus as a significant risk, which was one of the most
significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

How we responded to the risk

Audit procedures undertaken in response to the identified risk included:

working with management to understand the implications the response to
the Covid -19 pandemic had on the organisation’s ability to prepare the
financial statements and update financial forecasts and assessed the
implications for our materiality calculations. No changes were made to
materiality levels previously reported as a result of Covid-19 specifically.
The draft financial statements were provided on 03 July 2020;

liaison with other audit suppliers, regulators and government departments to
co-ordinate practical cross-sector responses to issues as and when they
arose. Examples include the material uncertainty disclosed by the Council’s
property valuation expert;

evaluating the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements that
arose in light of the Covid -19 pandemic;

evaluating of whether sufficient audit evidence could be obtained through
remote technology;

evaluating whether sufficient audit evidence could be obtained to
corroborate significant management estimates such as assets and the
pension fund liability valuations ;

evaluating management’s assumptions that underpin the revised financial
forecasts and the impact on management’s going concern assessment;

discussion with management the implications for our audit report where we
have been unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence.

The Council’s property valuation specialists reported that valuations of land and
buildings and investment properties were subject to ‘material valuation
uncertainty’ as at 31 March 2020 as a result of the impact of the Covid -19
pandemic on market activity, meaning that less certainty, and a higher degree
of caution, should be placed on the recorded valuation of these assets than
would otherwise be the case. Management appropriately included an
uncertainty disclosure in Note 5 to the Council’s financial statements, and have
updated the disclosure to include a sensitivity analysis as a result of audit
challenge.

Findings and
conclusions

Management updated
the disclosures in Note
5 to the Pension Fund
financial statements,
and Note 5 to the
Council financial
statements, as
appropriate.

These disclosures
were referred to in our
auditor’s reports for the
Council and Pension
Fund respectively, in
emphasis of matter
paragraphs. These
references do not
constitute qualifications
of the audit opinions.



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan (including Applicable How we responded to the risk
Audit Plan Addendum) to
Covid — 19 continued Council and In addition, the fund managers for the Pension Fund’s pooled property

Pension Fund investments and private equity, infrastructure investments and diversified growth
funds declared material valuation uncertainties in the valuation of these
investments on the same basis. This impacts upon both the valuation of
investments in the Pension Fund accounts and the valuation of the net defined
benefit liability in the Council’s balance sheet.

T¢ obed

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

Findings and
conclusions



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks - continued

These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan (including Applicable to
Audit Plan Addendum)
Management override of controls Council and

Pension Fund
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed

risk that the risk of management over-ride of controls is
present in all entities.

In particular journals, management estimates and
transgctions outside the course of business are areas
susegptible to management override.

gc ob

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

How we responded to the risk

Audit procedures undertaken in response to the identified risk included:

e evaluation of the design effectiveness of management controls over
journals

e analysis of the journals listing and determine the criteria for selecting
high risk unusual journals

e testing unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft
accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration

e gaining an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical
judgements applied made by management and consider their
reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence

evaluating the rationale for any changes in accounting policies,
estimates or significant unusual transactions.

We recommended in our 2018/19 Audit Findings Report a review of
systems access to your financial systems to ensure super user access is
restricted to appropriate persons and they are not involved in day to day
operations such as approving manual journals. This would ensure
separation of duties as we would typically expect such journals to be
posted by the finance team. We note that system administrators with
super user rights continue to have the ability to post manual journals.

Findings and
conclusions

Our testing identified three
manual journals posted by
system administrators. We
made recommendations to
improve the journal
procedures.



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks - continued
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan (including Audit Applicable How we responded to the risk Findings and
Plan Addendum) to conclusions
Valuation of land and buildings including council Council Audit procedures undertaken in response to the identified risk Management updated the

dwellings

You revalue your assets as follows:

e operational land and buildings on a rolling three-yearly basis

e council dwellings based on a rolling five-year approach using
underlying valuations of beacon properties; and

e |nvestment Properties on a yearly basis.

Th£ valuations represent a significant estimate by
maﬁgement in the financial statements due to the size of the
numbers involved (£4 billion) and the sensitivity of the estimates
to c%‘nges in key assumptions.

Additionally, management will need to ensure the carrying value
in the financial statements is not materially different from the
current value, or the fair value (for surplus assets), at the
financial statements date where a rolling programme is used.

Operational land and buildings are valued as at 1 April, and are
updated to 31 March with reference to market assumptions
given by the valuer at the end of the financial year. Similarly,
council dwellings are valued as at 1 April and are updated to 31
March with reference to assumptions provided by the valuer at
year-end that reflect changes in stock and house price indices.

As the in-year valuations themselves are not at year-end, the
risk of material misstatement is further increased.

We therefore identified valuation of land and buildings,
particularly revaluations and impairments, as a significant risk of
material misstatement.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

included:

evaluating management's processes and assumptions for the
calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to valuation
experts and the scope of their work

evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
valuation expert

writing to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation
was carried out to ensure that the requirements of the Code are
met

engaging our own valuer to assess the instructions to the
Council’'s valuer, the Council's valuer's report and the
assumptions that underpin the valuation.

testing revaluations made during the year to see if they had
been input correctly into the Council’s asset register

assessing the value of a sample of assets in relation to market
rates for comparable properties.

testing a sample of beacon properties in respect of council
dwellings to consider whether their valuation assumptions are
appropriate and whether they are truly representative of the
other properties within that beacon group.

As discussed under ‘Covid -19” above, the Council’s property
valuation specialists reported that valuations of land and buildings,
including investment properties and council dwellings, were subject
to ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as at 31 March 2020, as a result
of the impact of the Covid -19 pandemic on market activity,
meaning that less certainty, and a higher degree of caution, should
be placed on the recorded valuation of these assets than would
otherwise be the case.

disclosure to include a
sensitivity as a result of audit
challenge.

We referred to the disclosure
in our auditor’s report as an
emphasis of matter paragraph.
This did not constitute a
qualification of the audit
opinion.

We experienced significant
difficulties obtaining evidence
to support fixed asset and
investment property valuations
and judgements recorded in
the Council’s accounts. We
made recommendations in the
Audit Findings report to
support and improve the
valuations and judgements
recorded in the Council’s
accounts.



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks - continued
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan (including Applicable How we responded to the risk Findings and
Audit Plan Addendum) to conclusions
Accuracy and presentation of the Private Finance Council Audit procedures undertaken in response to the identified risk included: Management advised us of a
Initiative (PF) liabilities and associated disclosures e reviewing your PFl models and assumptions contained therein. lrfsltate:ent ?Il;PtPE1 gi)ousing
You have six schemes to be accounted for as PFI N ; : danti scheme (Note
comparing your PFI models to previous year to identify an : P
arrangements. These include two Housing PFI chanpges gy P 4 y any disclosure (building element)
schemes, two Schools schemes, a Street Lighting R where the land value had
scheme and a Care Homes scheme. e reviewing and test the output produced by your PFI models to been incorrectly included in
generate the financial balances within the financial statements. the disclosure. We noted the

The dtal liability relating to these schemes on the o ) .
balgXce sheet was £135m as at 31 March 2019: the * reviewing the PFI disclosures to assess whether they are consistent

with the Code and the International Accountancy Standard IFRIC12.
We will check additional disclosures that you include within the

PFI land, buildings and
infrastructure within Note 18

boogvalue of associated assets was £514m. was correctly stated and the

As se PFI transactions are significant, complex and financial statements to the PFI models. error was limited to the
invoRe a degree of subjectivity in the measurement of additional PFI building
financial information, we have categorised them as a disclosure only.

significant risk of material misstatement.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021 10



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks - continued
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Applicable = How we responded to the risk Findings and
(including Audit Plan Addendum) to conclusions
Valuation of pension fund net liability Council Audit procedures undertaken in response to the identified risk included: Management updated the

The Council's pension fund net liability, as
reflected in its balance sheet as the net
defined benefit liability, represents a
significant estimate in the financial
statements.

The_%e:nsion fund net liability is considered a
signiitant estimate due to the size of the

nu rs involved (£916 million in the
Coumxil's balance sheet as at 31 March 2019)
andpfe sensitivity of the estimate to changes

updating our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by
management to ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability is not materially
misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls;

evaluating of the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an
actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out
the Council’s pension fund valuation;

assessing of the reasonableness of the actuary’s assumptions and calculations in-line
with the relevant standards, including their consideration of the ongoing impact of the
McCloud and Guaranteed Minimum Pension cases.

in keyrassumptions. e assessing the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council

to the actuary to estimate the liability;

¢ testing the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the
notes to the core financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary;

e undertaking procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions
made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and
performing any additional procedures suggested within the report; and

e obtaining assurances from our audit of the Pension Fund as to the controls
surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership data, contributions data and
benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and the fund assets valuation in
the pension fund financial statements.

Material valuation uncertainties are reported for the valuation of private equity,
infrastructure, diversified growth funds and pooled property investments in the Pension
Fund accounts. Given that the majority of the Pension Fund’s assets are attributable to
the Council as the administering authority for the Fund, there is also a material
uncertainty surrounding the valuation of the net defined benefit liability in the Council’s
balance sheet.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

disclosure (Note 5) to
reflect the uncertainty.
The disclosure was
referred to in our auditor’s
report in an emphasis of
matter paragraph. This
did not constitute a
qualification of the audit
opinion.

1"



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks - continued

These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan (including
Audit Plan Addendum)

Valuation of Level 3 Investments (Annual
revaluation)

The Fund values its investments on an annual basis to
ensure that the carrying value is not materially different
from the fair value at the financial statements date.

By their nature Level 3 investment valuations lack
obseggyable inputs. These valuations therefore represent
a si@ificant estimate by management in the financial
sta('anents due to the size of the numbers involved (£67
million) and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in
key%%sumptions

Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to significant
non-routine transactions and judgemental matters. Level
3 investments by their very nature require a significant
degree of judgement to reach an appropriate valuation at
year end.

Management utilise the services of investment managers
and/or custodians as valuation experts to estimate the
fair value as at 31 March 2020.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

Applicable

Pension Fund

How we responded to the risk

Audit procedures undertaken in response to the identified risk included:

evaluating management's processes for valuing Level 3 investments

reviewing the nature and basis of estimated values and consider what
assurance management has over the year end valuations provided for
these types of investments; to ensure that the requirements of the
Code are met

independently requesting year-end confirmations from investment
managers and/or custodian(s)

for a sample of investments, testing the valuation by obtaining and
reviewing the audited accounts, (where available) at the latest date for
individual investments and agreeing these to the fund manager
reports at that date. Reconciling those values to the values at 31
March 2020 with reference to known movements in the intervening
period

in the absence of available audited accounts, evaluating the
competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert

testing revaluations made during the year to see if they had been
input correctly into the Pension Fund’s asset register

where available, reviewing investment manager service auditor report
on design effectiveness of internal controls.

Our audit procedures in this area is complete. Minor amendments were
made to your Level 3 disclosures.

Findings and
conclusions

No material issue was
identified from the work
performed in this area.

12



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 30
November 2020.

Preparation of the financial statements

The Council presented us with draft financial statements in accordance with
the national deadline, and provided agreed working papers to support them.
The finance team responded promptly and efficiently to our queries during
the course of the audit. We agreed recommendations to support and improve
the particularly the valuations and judgements supporting Property Plant and
Equipment disclosures.

Issues arising from the audit of the financial statements
We reported the key issues from our audit to the Council's Audit Committee
“&h 29 September 2020.

he Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure was unchanged post
@udit, although there were non material uncertainties within the accounts due
Mo the lack of evidence to support your property valuations. The Council
2dvised us of a £152m material classification adjustment within the cashflow
and related notes. The misclassification had no impact on the Cash and
Cash equivalents balance at the 31 March 2020.
We identified unadjusted errors and uncertainties in both the Council and
Pension Fund accounts which were not material. Management chose not
amend the accounts in respect of these errors. We raised and agreed
recommendations for management as a result of our work.

We concluded that the other information published with the financial
statements was consistent with our knowledge of your organisation and the
financial statements we had audited.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report

We are also required to review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and
Narrative Report. It published them on its website alongside the Statement of
Accounts in line with the national deadlines.

Both documents were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant supporting
guidance. We confirmed that both documents were consistent with the financial
statements prepared by the Council and with our knowledge of the Council.

Pension fund accounts

We gave an unqualified opinion on the pension fund accounts of Islington Council
Pension Fund on 30 November 2020. We also reported the key issues from our audit
of the pension fund accounts to the Council’s Audit Committee on 29 September
2020.

We also gave an unqualified opinion on the consistency of the pension fund financial
statements included in the Pension Fund Annual Report on 13 January 2021.

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA)

We carried out work in line with instructions provided by the NAO. The work is
substantially complete. The return will be completed once HM Treasury resolve issues
they are experiencing with the Return.

Certificate of closure of the audit

We are unable to certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements
of Islington Council until we complete our work on the WGA Return as mentioned
above.

13



Commercial in confidence

Value for Money conclusion

Background

We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit
Practice, following the guidance issued by the NAO in April 2020 which
specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate:

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions
and deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for
taxpayers and local people.

Key findings
OyHfirst step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and

igehtify the risks where we concentrated our work.
)

THd%risks we identified and the work we performed are set out overleaf.

Overall Value for Money conclusion

We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ending 31 March 2020.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

14



Commercial in confidence

Value for Money conclusion

Value for Money Risks
Risks identified in our audit plan

Medium Term Financial Planning

Future funding uncertainty arising from the fairer funding review and longer-term
settlement decisions has created financial uncertainty for the Council over the
medium to long term. You have set a balanced budget for 2020/21 and your Medium
Term Financial Plan for 2020 — 2023 identifies that you needed to close a 3 year
budget gap of £10.6m to maintain financial balance. This assumes that you will
deliver £23.6m savings under a revised savings programme.

A recent review of the 2019/20 savings programme, intended to deliver £13.5m
savings, indicates that 78% of savings are ‘Green’ rated, 5% are ‘Amber’ rated and
17%gare ‘Red rated. Whilst the Amber and Red rated savings are being covered from
on&Xff resources and underspends in the current financial year, there are risks
ar%]d the ongoing delivery of these savings in future years.

Wéeviewed your arrangements for setting the MTFP and examined underlying
aségnptions and dependencies for robustness. We examined in detail the savings
plans aimed at reducing future funding gaps.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

Findings and conclusions
Conclusion

The financial outlook for the Council remains challenging. During 2019/20 and in the
period since the year-end, officers have put in place robust arrangements to ensure
that risks and uncertainties are given due consideration in short and medium-term
financial planning and the impact is effectively modelled to the best of their ability,
drawing on external support where knowledge gaps or wider unknowns are identified.

The outturn position for 2019/20 is broadly indicative that management’s understanding
of the key drivers for income and expenditure relating to core services and ability to
understand impact of decisions taken is strong, and plans have been put in place for
improvement to processes where significant variances were identified. The
methodology through which management have identified pressures resulting from
Covid-19, and the reporting structure to members, is considered effective.

As a result of Government Funding and initiatives, prior year underspends and prudent
financial planning including setting aside contingencies in the budget-setting process,
the Council has sufficient resources in place to meet the expected shortfalls in income
and increases in expenditure for 2020/21 arising from the Covid-19 pandemic and is
not facing the kinds of challenging decisions in the immediate term around service
cuts.

However, in the medium term, the picture remains far more uncertain as the longer-
lasting impact of the pandemic on the economy, in the context of wider financial risks
beyond the control of officers or members, remain significant unknowns. Management
are conscious of the need to remain responsive to emerging circumstances, whilst
keeping sight of longer-term strategic goals which underpin future investment decisions
from use of reserves.

15



Commercial in confidence

Value for Money conclusion

Value for Money Risks
Risks identified in our audit plan

Change and transformation programmes and governance

You are embarking on some significant transformation programmes, including
transformation of ICT under Islington Digital Services. Your plans are ambitious and
complex and require robust arrangements. You are seeking to transform the way the
organisation is working in terms of new technology, new structures, new ways of
working and shifting focus to meet the needs of the diverse population which the
organisation serves, whilst maintaining financial balance.

0€ abed

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

Findings and conclusions

Conclusion

Along with all organisations across the public and private sectors, you are considering
how to take forward the benefits from the period of largely remote working which has
been necessitated by the Covid-19 pandemic. This includes considerations such as
flexible working, effective use of office space and the ways in which services are
delivered, for example how remote communications with clients to support delivery of
Children’s Services, which has been necessitated by the Covid-19 pandemic, can be
adapted and used going forward.

You remain in a period of significant change with many plans in place for the future.
Designing resilient, future-fit service delivery models will be more crucial than ever given
the economic uncertainties which the Council now faces over the medium term and the
pressures being faced by local businesses and residents. Change and transformation
programmes have been adversely impacted by covid-19 but you recognise the
importance of continuing to identify and reprofile savings plans. It will also be essential
that the anticipated benefits and desired outcomes from transformation and cultural
change are clearly articulated and measurable, to enable you to demonstrate success
against the plans and identify, and take corrective action, at an early stage should the
risks to success become prohibitive. The Council’s executive leadership are conscious of
this and have to date maintained resources set aside to invest in change and
transformation, despite the current crisis.

16



Commercial in confidence

A. Reports issued and fees

We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Reports issued Fees
Report Date issued PIanneg Actual feez 2018/19 feez
Audit Plan (Accounts and Pension Fund) 03 March 2020 Statutory audit 181,497 235,900 156,179
Audit Plan Addendum 16 April 2020 Audit of Pension Fund 25,000 28,750 16,170
Housing Benefit Grant Certification and 20,000 TBC 28,226

Audit Findings Report 29 September 2020 report

Auditor's opinion on Accounts and Pension Fund 30 November 2020 Total fees 226,497 264,650 200,575
Auditor's value for money conclusion 30 November 2020

gitor’s opinion on consistency of the pension fund 13 January 2021

fieancial statements with Pension Fund Annual Report

VXCDSA Assurance Statement Work ongoing

Amual Audit Letter 20 January 2021

Teachers’ Pension claim Work ongoing

Pooling Housing Receipts claim Work ongoing

Housing Benefit Grant Certification and report Work ongoing

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021 17



Commercial in confidence

A. Reports issued and fees continued

Audit fee variation

As outlined in our Audit Plan, the 2019-20 scale fee published by PSAA (accounts £156,179, Pension fund £16,170) assumes that the scope of the audit does not significantly
change. There are a number of areas where the scope of the audit has changed, which has led to additional work. These are set out in the following table. Over the past six months
the current Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on all of our lives, both at work and at home. The impact of Covid-19 on the audit of the financial statements for 2019/20
has been multifaceted. This includes revisiting planning, management’s assumptions and estimates, financial resilience assessment and remote working.

We have been discussing this issue with PSAA over the last few months and note these issues are similar to those experienced in the commercial sector and NHS. Please note that
these proposed additional fees are subject to approval by PSAA in line with the Terms of Appointment

Financial Pension
Audit area Accounts fund Rationale for fee variation
Scale fee £156,179 £16,170 This is this is the PSAA scale fee and is unchanged from 2018/19
Increased challenge and £5.000 £5.000 The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has highlighted that the quality of work by all audit firms needs to improve across local
depth of work audit. This will require additional supervision and leadership, as well as additional challenge and scepticism in areas such as
o journals, estimates, financial resilience and information provided by the entity
M&riality £4,500 - As outlined earlier in the Plan, we have also reduced the materiality level, reflecting the higher profile of local audit. This will entail
D increased scoping and sampling, increasing the volume and scope of our testing and reporting to those charged with governance,
W as well as providing you with additional assurance in respect of the audit.
N
Pensions — valuation of £3,500 £3,830 The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has specifically highlighted that the quality and extent of work around IAS 19 valuations
net pension liabilities has to increase across local audit. We have increased the granularity, depth and scope of coverage, with increased levels of
under International sampling, additional levels of challenge and explanation sought, and heightened levels of documentation and reporting.
Auditing Standard (IAS)
19
PPE Valuation — work of £9,400 - The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has specifically highlighted that the quality and extent of work around PPE and
experts Investment Property valuations has to increase across local audit. We have responded by engaging our own audit expert (Gerald
Eve) and will increase the volume and scope of our audit work to ensure an adequate level of audit scrutiny and challenge over
the assumptions that underpin PPE valuations. This fee increase includes an estimate for the fee payable to the auditor’'s expert.
We estimate that the cost of the auditor’s expert will be in the region of £5,000.
Accounting developments £2,500 - The Council will be required to disclose in its 2019/20 financial statements the expected initial impact of the implementation of
new accounting standards and disclosures. This will require additional audit procedures.
Impact of Covid £29,821 £3,750 See following page
Additional work due to £25,000 - As reported on page 9
PPE evidence difficulties
Revised scale fee (to be £235,900 £28,750

approved by PSAA)

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

18



Commercial in confidence

A. Reports issued and fees continued

Over the past six months the current Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on all of our lives, both at work and at home. The impact of Covid-19 on the audit of the financial
statements for 2019/20 has been multifaceted. This includes:

+ Reuvisiting planning - we have needed to revisit our planning and refresh risk assessments, materiality and testing levels. This has resulted in the identification of a significant risk at
the financial statements level in respect of Covid-19 necessitating the issuing of an addendum to our original audit plan as well as additional work on areas such as going concern and
disclosures in accordance with IAS1 particularly in respect to material uncertainties.

+ Management’s assumptions and estimates - there is increased uncertainty over many estimates including pension and other investment valuations. Many of these valuations are
impacted by the reduction in economic activity and we are required to understand and challenge the assumptions applied by management.

+ Financial resilience assessment — we have been required to consider the financial resilience of audited bodies. Our experience to date indicates that Covid-19 has impacted on the
financial resilience of all local government bodies. This has increased the amount of work that we need to undertake on the sustainable resource deployment element of the VFM
criteria necessitating enhanced and more detailed reporting in our ISA260.

+ Remote working — the most significant impact in terms of delivery is the move to remote working. We, as other auditors, have experienced delays and inefficiencies as a result of
remote working, including the delays in receiving accounts, quality of working papers, and delays in responses. These are understandable and arise from the availability of the
“Urelevant information and/or the availability of key staff (due to shielding or other additional Covid-19 related demands). In many instances the delays are caused by our inability to sit
gwith an officer to discuss a query or working paper. Gaining an understanding via Teams or phone is more time-consuming.

ViR have been discussing this issue with PSAA over the last few months and note these issues are similar to those experienced in the commercial sector and NHS. In both sectors there
h&e been a recognition that audits will take longer with commercial audit deadlines being extended by 4 months and NHS deadline by a month. The FRC has also issued guidance to
c%panies and auditors setting out its expectation that audit standards remain high and of additional work needed across all audits. The link attached https://www.frc.org.uk/covid-19-
guidance-and-advice (see guidance for auditors) sets out the expectations of the FRC.

Please note that these proposed additional fees are subject to approval by PSAA in line with the Terms of Appointment.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021 19



Commercial in confidence

A. Reports issued and fees continued

Fees for non-audit services

Service

Audit related services
Certification of Housing Capital Receipts Grant
Certification of Teachers Pensions Return

n-Audit related services
CFO Insights Subscription

vc ofed -

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | January 2021

Fees £

3,000
5,000

10,000

Non- audit services

» For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant
Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The table
above summarises all non-audit services which were identified.

* We have considered whether non-audit services might be perceived
as a threat to our independence as the Council’s auditor and have
ensured that appropriate safeguards are put in place.

The above non-audit services are consistent with the Council’s policy on
the allotment of non-audit work to your auditor.

20



Commercial in confidence

G¢e abed

o G ra nt Tho rnto n © 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member
firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



o Grant Thornton

An instinct for growth’

Value for money
Update for Audit Committee
on new arrangements 2020-21

)€ ab




Commercial in confidence

How have the NAO changed value for money work ?

! Natioral Audit Office

National Audit Office

Auditor Guidance Note 3 (AGN 03)
Auditors’ Work on Value for Money (VFM) Arrangements

Version issued on: oo

About Auditor Guidance Notes

Auditor Guidance Notes (AGNs) are prepared and published by the National Audit Office [NAD)
on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General [CEAG) who has power to issuse puidance to
auditors under Schedule 6 parsgraph § of the Local Audit and Accourtability Act 2014 [the Act).

AGNs set out guidance to which bocal auditors must have regard under Section 20(6) of the Act.
The guidgsnce in AGNs supports auditors in meeting their requirements under the Act and the.
Cogle of Audit Proctice published by the NAD on behalf of the CEAG.

8¢ abed

Code of Audit Practice it lepsiimitiraig. Wi, . il

loczl auditors under the Act may wse WACS to update their own internal communications and
reference tools.

AGHs are numbered sequentizlly and published on the NAD's website. Any new or revised AGHs
are brought to the sttention of locsl auditors through the WACs.

Tha MAG prapares Audiior Guidance Mot (A% | solely tc provide guidance bo leal audfon bs interpretiog
e Code of Audit Practice made under the Local Audit and Accountabiivy Act 3014, The contants of AGNs
it it ] o -l Pl by i o s sl s vl i M
e NG

Tha Alibs aredadgned to st local ead@on b forming teir omn usdertardieg of e regelement of the
Code Audinr am requined o have regeed bo Adiia, which msam that they must take inte scooum the
pldiance tisced by B A, and] IF thiry dicide aat 1o fallow It, By rust g chaar (I the iere of cbjectie,
e, ard legtimate | oo wittle st documestetizn m i why thy b sot ke th gaidance.
AN e in o way Intended i a substfute for the of the il and

of i leal mudiion in i B b2 apely the NAD'S peldance o whas sroviding o plasation o
b wity guidance b not been followsd .

Local sedters should not sxssme that Allks are comprehemibee o thit they will provids & defnttve asywer in

eary e

2 ©2020 Grant Thomton UK LLP o GrantThornton | An instinct for growth’



How Is value for money work changing ?

6€ abed

g—
Maximising
the value
— from

W Yudltor S
: work
meaningful |

and timely
\reporting
More

freedom to

reflect local
\context

4

VFM arrangements commentary and recommendations

3 © 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commercial in confidence

° GrantThornton | Aninstinct for growth’



Commercial in confidence

The three criteria have changed...

l

Governance

O abed

’ Financial
sustainability

’ Improving
economy,

efficiency and
effectiveness

o GrantThornton

An instinct for growth



Commercial in confidence

A key change in reporting.

Auditor’s Annual
Report

5 ©2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP o GrantThornton | Aninstinct for growth’



Commercial in confidence

So what is in an Auditor’s Annual Report ?

Commentary on
arrangements

Recommendations

Progress in
Implementing
recommendations

Use of additional
powers

2 obed

Opinion on the
financial

statements

6  ©2020 Grant Thomton UK LLP o GrantThornton | An instinct for growth’



Commercial in confidence

Recommendations

T Evidence Impact of :

3 Nature of Sl LI Aigﬁgrﬁobe

IN auditor’s on the

Z weakness S : address the
vView is audited weakness
based body

7 © 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP

O GrantThornton | Aninstinct for growth’



Commercial in confidence

Practical implications

The new approach is more complex, more involved and will
lead to better quality working achieving more impact. Before
peginning work, we will discuss with you:

o V¥ 90€

Timing

Resourcing

e Fees

Q GrantThornton = An instinct for growth’



Commercial in confidence

Q&A

Gy abed

9 ©2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP Q GrantThornton = Aninstinct for growth’



This page is intentionally left blank



° Grant Thornton

Islington Council and Islington Council
Pension Fund Audit Plan

Year ending 31 March 2021

arch 2021

Y
Q
«Q
@
AN
~




Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Paul Grady

U Key Audit Partner
Q@ T 020 7728 2439

E Paul.D.Grady@uk.gt.com

Ade Oyerinde

Senior Manager

T 020 7728 3332

E Ade.O.Oyerinde@uk.gt.com

Nick J Halliwell

Manager

T 020 7728 2469

E Nick.J.Halliwell@uk.gt.com

Lydia Smith

Incharge auditor

T 020 7865 2476

E Lydia.H.Smith@uk.gt.com

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Contents

Section

Key matters

Introduction and headlines
Significant risks identified

Other risks identified

Accounting estimates and related disclosures
Other matters

Materiality

Value for Money Arrangements

Risks of significant VFM weaknesses
Audit logistics and team

Audit fees

Independence and non-audit services

Appendix 1: Revised Auditor Standards and application guidance

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention,
which we believe need to be reported to you
as part of our audit planning process. It is
not a comprehensive record of all the
relevant matters, which may be subject to
change, and in particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all of the
risks which may affect the Council or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This
report has been prepared solely for your
benefit and should not be quoted in whole or
in part without our prior written consent. We
do not accept any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party acting, or
refraining from acting on the basis of the
content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other
purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury
Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the
member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of,
and do not obligate, one another and are not
liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



Key matters

Commercial in confidence

Finances

The Council’s financial position over the coming years is increasingly challenging. The pandemic has resulted in additional spending pressures estimated
at £16 million and a reduction to the Council’s income streams estimated at £36 million. In the short term the government is providing financial support to
meet some of these pressures. The current known allocation from central government to the Council remains at £26 million and the Council also expects to
receive around £16 million as part of the government’s scheme to reimburse a proportion of local authorities’ loss in non-commercial fees and charges due
to the pandemic.

The 2020-21 forecast position as at Quarter 3 on service budgets is breakeven, and assumes the receipt of the £16 million compensation referred to above.
The impact of the pandemic continues to be the key driver for the overspend within departments, including unanticipated costs for new service provision in
dealing with the health crisis and the impact on income generation as a result of the national lockdown measures and the economic impact.

The future of local authority funding remains uncertain as new Local Government funding arrangements that were meant to be in place by April 2020
have been delayed until at least 2022. The Council has an anticipated budget shortfall of £34.2 million over the next three years to fund planned spending
levels. The Council is proposing a balanced budget for 2021-22 which includes assumed savings of £25.2 million across directorates together with a
Council Tax increase of 4.99 per cent, including the 3 per cent increase in respect of the adult social care precept.

From 2g81/22 and over the following three years, the Council plans to invest £639.2 million in the borough’s roads, infrastructure, the environment and
buildirggs. This includes £302 million for the new build programme and £135 million to invest in major works and improvement programmes on the Council’s

existi&%ousing stock.

Accounting and auditing developments

On 1 M@ 2020, the National Audit Office introduced a new Code of Audit Practice which comes into effect from audit year 2020/21. The Code introduced

a revised approach to the audit of Value for Money. (VFM) There are three main changes arising from the NAO’s new approach:

*  Anew set of key criteria, covering financial sustainability, governance and improvements in economy, efficiency and effectiveness

*  More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the auditor to produce a commentary on arrangements across all of the key criteria, rather than the
current ‘reporting by exception’ approach

The replacement of the binary (qualified / unqualified) approach to VFM conclusions, with more sophisticated judgements on performance, as well as
key recommendations on any significant weaknesses in arrangements identified during the audit.

In the period December 2018 to January 2020 the Financial Reporting Council issued a number of updated International Auditing Standards (ISAs (UK])
which are effective for audits of financial statements for periods beginning on or after 16 December 2019. ISA (UK) 540 (revised): Auditing Accounting
Estimates and Related Disclosures includes significant enhancements in respect of the audit risk assessment process for accounting estimates. As part of
this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the effectiveness of the role of those charged with governance relating to accounting
estimates adopted by management, which is particularly important where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant
judgement.

Although the implementation of IFRS 16 has been delayed, audited bodies still need to include disclosures in their 2020/21 statements to comply with the
requirements of IAS 8 . As a minimum, we would expect the Council to disclose the title of the standard, the date of initial application and the nature of the
changes in accounting policy for leases. If the impact of IFRS 16 is not known or reasonably estimable, the accounts should state this.

In the prior year the Council’s valuer reported a material uncertainty regarding the valuations of properties due to the Covid 19 pandemic. In addition,
there was a material uncertainty in relation to the valuation of the pooled property funds which impacted both the Council’s and Pension Funds position.
We will monitor the position for the 31 March 2021 valuations.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

We will consider your arrangements for
managing and reporting your financial
resources and assessing your financial
resilience as part of our audit in
completing our Value for Money work.

Where any actions have been agreed in
respect of matters identified through
previous audit work, either on the financial
statements or in respect of work on
arrangements to secure VFM, we will
assess the progress against previously
agreed recommendations.

Members of the finance team attended
our annual final accounts workshop
during February, hosted by our highly
experienced public sector assurance team
as they help you prepare for your 2021
financial statements audit by highlighting
potential risk areas and providing you
with practical advice

We will continue to provide you with
sector updates via our Audit Committee
and Audit Committee (Advisory) updates.

We will liaise with the Council’s valuer and
Pension Fund managers to clarify ong
potential material uncertainties in 2020-21.



Key matters (continued)

Commercial in confidence

Impact of Covid 19 pandemic

The outbreak of the Covid-19 coronavirus pandemic has had a significant impact on the Council’s normal operations. Throughout the
pandemic the Council has kept critical services going at the same time as supporting the Covid 19 national effort. The Council has delivered
food parcels, accommodated rough sleepers, boosted hardship funds, made welfare calls to vulnerable people, assisted tenants struggling
to pay rents and service charges, provided further support to residents in receipt of Council Tax Support, replenished food banks and
provided more parking permits for key workers throughout the pandemic. The Council has also assisted with testing programmes and
vaccine administration by helping with site preparation and logistics and in communications and engagement with local communities to
encourage uptake of the vaccine.

Since the start of the pandemic, c£69.3 million has been distributed to businesses in Islington to help them offset the impacts of Covid-19.
rants have been made available through a number of Government schemes, such as the business rates grants launched in spring 2020,
nd the Local Restrictions Support Scheme which was introduced with the tier system in late autumn 2020. The Council has also delivered

he 2020/21 business rates holidays promised by the government.

Ohe Council is now considering how to take forward the benefits from remote working necessitated by the pandemic. This includes further
Qse of flexible working, effective use of office space and reviewing service delivery models to ensure that residents and local communities
continue to receive cost effective, efficient quality services.

Change and Transformation

The Council continues to undergo extensive change and transformation. Work continues on the Islington Digital Services programme,
intended to transform the Council’s ICT Service to better enable it to support delivery of the Council’s Corporate Objectives. The outcomes
intended for the new IT structure are ambitious but intended to be achievable within the Council's financial and resourcing constraints. The
Council is also investing in a cleaner and greener borough, with the ambition to be a net zero-carbon borough within a decade. A number of
programmes are underway including increasing and updating the Council’s electric charging infrastructure, replacing its fleet of electric
vehicles and building new homes that are carbon neutral.

Pension Fund developments

The Pension Fund investments continue to recover from the pandemic shock. At the start of the year, the Council paid in advance for the
year a deficit lump sum of £26.9 million and made advance employer contributions of £25.2 million. By paying the employer contribution in
advance, the Council was able to benefit from a discount of 2.04% which equates to a saving of £0.53 million.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

We will consider your arrangements for
managing the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic as part of our Value for Money
work.

We will consider your arrangements for
change and transformation as part of our
audit in completing our Value for Money
work

We will undertake audit procedures to
ensure the Pension Fund’s deficit
payments and employer contributions are
fairly stated within the financial
statements



Commercial in confidence

Introduction and headlines

Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the
statutory audit of (‘the Council’) and the Islington Council Pension Fund (the
Pension Fund) for those charged with governance.

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of
Audit Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of
auditors begin and end and what is expected from the audited body. Our
respective responsibilities are also set out in the agreed Terms of
Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit
Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for appointing us as auditor of
the Council and Pension Fund. We draw your attention to both of these
documgnts.

Sco%of our audit

The sg%pe of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International
Stan&dilds on Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and
expressing an opinion on the:

* Council’s financial statements that have been prepared by management
with the oversight of those charged with governance (the Audit Committee
and Audit Committee (Advisory)); and

* Value for Money arrangements in place at the Council for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the
Audit Committee and Audit Committee (Advisory) of your responsibilities. It is
the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in
place for the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded
and properly accounted for. We have considered how the Council is fulfilling
these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Council's
business and is risk based.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Significant risks
Those risks requiring special audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material
financial statement error have been identified as:

Council
* The risk that the valuation of land and buildings including council dwellings in the accounts are materially
misstated.

* The risk that the valuation of the net pension fund liability in the accounts is materially misstated.

* The risk of management override of controls.

*  The risk that the accuracy and presentation of the Private Finance Initiative (PFI) is materially misstated.
* The risk that incomplete or inaccurate financial information is transferred to the new income system.

Pension Fund
* The risk of management override of controls.
* The risk that the valuation of level 3 investments in the accounts is materially misstated.

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from
the audit to you in our Audit Findings (ISA 260) Report.

Materiality

Council

We have determined planning materiality to be £16.6m for the Council (PY£16.5m), which equates to
approximately 1.6% of your prior year gross expenditure for the year. We are obliged to report uncorrected

omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance.
Clearly trivial has been set at £0.83m (PY £0.8m).

Pension Fund

We have determined materiality at the planning stage of our audit to be £13.5m (PY £13.6m)] for the Pension
Fund, which equates to approximately 1% of the 2019/20 net assets. We are obliged to report uncorrected
omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance.
Clearly trivial has been set at £0.68m (PY £0.68m).



Commercial in confidence

Introduction and headlines (continued])

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Value for Money arrangements

Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have identified the following risks of significant
weakness:

* The Council’s arrangements in response to the Covid-19 pandemic and capitalising on the benefits from the different
models of service delivery and ways of working bought about by the pandemic.

* The Council’s arrangements for setting the Medium Term Financial Plan and achieving financial sustainability.
* The Council’s arrangements for service transformation and cultural change.

* The Council’s arrangements for working with its key partners to deliver services efficiently and improve the lives of local
residents.

Audit logistics

Our interim visit will take place in March 2021 and our final visit will take place between July - September 2021. Our key
deliverables are this Audit Plan, our Audit Findings Report and Auditor’s Annual Report. Our audit approach is detailed in
Appendix A.

Our fee for the audit will be £xxxxx (PY: £235,900) for the Council and £xxxxx (PY:£28,760]) for the Pension Fund, subject to
the Council and Pension Fund delivering a good set of financial statements and working papers.

We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard (revised 2019) and we as a firm, and each
covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.



Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK] as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In
identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.
Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

Risk Risk relates to Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk
The revenue cycle includes Council and Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.
fraudulent transactions Pension Fund

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue
(rebutted) recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the Council and Pension Fund revenue streams, we have determined
that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

* There s little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition.

LY
Q *  Opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited.
% * The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including that of Islington Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as
o1 unacceptable.
w Therefore, we do not consider this to be a significant risk at for the Islington Council and Islington Council Pension Fund.
Management over-ride of Council and Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk We will:
controls Pension Fund of management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. The council

* Evaluate the design effectiveness of management controls

faces external scrutiny of its spending and this could potentially place over journals.

management under undue pressure in terms of how they report
performance. * Analyse the journals listing and determine the criteria for

. . . . . selecting high risk unusual journals.
We therefore identified management override of control, in particular

journals, management estimates and transactions outside the course of =~ ° Test unusual journals recorded dl{ring the year and after jche

business as a significant risk, which was one of the most significant draft accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration.

assessed risks of material misstatement. +  Gain an understanding of the accounting estimates and
critical judgements applied made by management and
consider their reasonableness with regard to corroborative
evidence.

* Evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting
policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 7



Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified (continued)

Risk Risk relates to Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of Council

The Council revalues its land and buildings, Heritage

We will:

Icm.lcl fmd Assets and Investmen.t Proper‘cg. onan onm.ml basisto . Eygluate management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the
bu' dlr?gs ensure that the carrying value is not .materlollg instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work.
including different from the current value or fair value (for
Council surplus assets/Investment properties) at the financial Evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert.
Dwellings statements date. This valuation represents a *  Write to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out to ensure that the
significant estimate by management in the financial requirements of the Code are met.
st.o'tements due to th.e. s'lze of th,e nur.‘nbers involved [f—_‘|+ e Engage our own valuer to assess the instructions to the Council’s valuer, the Council’s valuer’s
billion) and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes 999
. R Y report and the assumptions that underpin the valuation.
in key assumptions.
Management has engaged the services of a valuer to Test revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the Council’s
g gag g y Yy P Y
estimate the current value as at 31 March 2021. asset register and financial statements.
We identified the valuation of land and buildings, *  Assess the value of a sample of assets in relation to market rates for comparable properties.
Council Dwellings, heritage assets and investment .. . . . .
. ; . . - Test a sample of beacon properties in respect of council dwellings to consider whether their
J1) properties, particularly revaluations and impairments, . X . .
C . . valuation assumptions are appropriate and whether they are truly representative of the other
8 as a significant risk, which was one of the most i Hhin that b
o) significant assessed risks of material misstatement. properties within that beacon group-
O3
& Valuation of Council The Council's pension fund net liability, as reflected We will:
;he pension In |t.s.ba|once sheet qs'the. r.wet deﬁn.ed ben.eﬁt * Update our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure
I.uno?lrnet "}’b"'t%h represents a significant estimate in the that the Council’s pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluate the design
iability financial statements. of the associated controls.

The pension fund net liability is considered a
significant estimate due to the size of the numbers
involved (E£911 million in the Council’s balance sheet)
and the sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key
assumptions.

Evaluate the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an actuary] for
this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work.

Assess the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the
Council’s pension fund valuation.

Assess the reasonableness of the actuary’s assumptions and calculations in-line with the
relevant standards, including their consideration of the ongoing impact of the McCloud,
Goodwin and Guaranteed Minimum Pension cases.

Assess the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council to the
actuary to estimate the liability.

Test the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the
core financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary.

Undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by
reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert] and performing any
additional procedures suggested within the report.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified (continued)

Risk Risk relates to Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Accuracy and Council
presentation

of the Private

Finance

Initiative (PFI)

liabilities and

associated

disclosures

You have six schemes to be accounted for as PFI
arrangements. These include two Housing PFl schemes, two
Schools schemes, a Street Lighting scheme and a Care Homes
scheme.

The total liability relating to these schemes on the balance
sheet was £111m as at 31 March 2020; the book value of
associated assets was £374m.

As these PFl transactions are significant, complex and involve a
degree of subjectivity in the measurement of financial
information, we have categorised them as a significant risk of
material misstatement.

We will:

review your PFl models and assumptions contained therein.
compare your PFl models to previous year to identify any changes.

review and test the output produced by your PFI models to generate the financial
balances within the financial statements.

review the PFl disclosures to assess whether they are consistent with International
Accountancy Standard IFRIC12. We will check additional disclosures that you
include within the financial statements to the PFI models.

Incomplete or Council
inaccurate
© financial
(M information
(1 transferred to
U1 the new income
system

During the year, the Council replaced it’s income system (Paris)
with another (Civica). This move will result in transitioning data
for billing and processing income. When implementing a new
significant accounting system, it is important to ensure that
sufficient controls have been designed and operate to ensure
the integrity of the data. There is also a risk over the
completeness and accuracy of any data transfer from the
previous system.

We will:

Complete an information technology (IT) environment review to document, evaluate
and test the IT controls operating within the new income system.

Map the closing balances from the old system to the opening balance position in the
new income system to ensure accuracy and completeness of the financial
information.

Sample test information from the old system to agree to the new system, and from the
new system to the old system.

Documentation of controls in place around the data transfer, including liaising with
Internal Audit to understand their work on this.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified (continued)

Risk

Risk relates to Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of
Level 3
Investments
(Annual
revaluation)

9G abed

Pension Fund The Fund values its investments on an annual basis to ensure that
the carrying value is not materially different from the fair value at
the financial statements date.

By their nature Level 3 investment valuations lack observable
inputs. These valuations therefore represent a significant estimate
by management in the financial statements due to the size of the
numbers involved (£87 million) and the sensitivity of this estimate
to changes in key assumptions

Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to significant non-
routine transactions and judgemental matters. Level 3
investments by their very nature require a significant degree of
judgement to reach an appropriate valuation at year end.

Management utilise the services of investment managers and/or
custodians as valuation experts to estimate the fair value as at 31
March 2021.

We will:

Evaluate management's processes for valuing Level 3 investments.

Review the nature and basis of estimated values and consider what assurance
management has over the year end valuations provided for these types of
investments; to ensure that the requirements of the Code are met.

Independently request year-end confirmations from investment managers and the
custodian.

For a sample of investments, test the valuation by obtaining and reviewing the
audited accounts, (where available) at the latest date for individual investments
and agreeing these to the fund manager reports at that date. Reconcile those
values to the values at 31 March 2021 with reference to known movements in the
intervening period.

In the absence of available audited accounts, we will evaluate the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert.

Where available review investment manager service auditor report on design and
operating effectiveness of internal controls.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Other risks identified

Commercial in confidence

Risk Risk relates to Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk
Completeness  Council Non-pay expenditure on goods and services represents a significant We will:
of nront—iﬁog perce.ntage of the COL.mC'l S gross operutmg expenchture. Management * Evaluate the Council’s accounting policy for recognition of non-pay
operating uses judgement to estimate accruals of un-invoiced costs. expenditure for appropriateness, including the use of de minimis level
expenditure . . . .
and associated We identified completeness of non- pay expenditure and associated short- set.
short-term term creditors as a risk requiring particular audit attention. »  Gain an understanding of the Council’s system for accounting for non-
creditors pay expenditure and evaluate the design of the associated controls.
*  Obtain and test a listing of non-pay payments made in April and May
2021 to ensure that they have been charged to the appropriate year.
Imgpme from Council In 2019/120, the Council disclosed it had an agency agreement with Thames We will:
v@ter charges Water whereby the council collects the pcgmer?t of wgter Fnlls from its HRA Review disclosure and classification of short- and long-term provisions
agency tenants on behalf of Thames Water. The Council received income of and ensure that they meet the requirements of the CIPFA Code and IAS
eement with £1.473m for this arrangement in 2019/20 (£1.473m in 2018/19). In December 37.
T&dmes Water 2019, Kingston-Upon-Thames lost a case brought against it by a tenant who
~ Discuss with the Council’s legal advisors, review committee minutes and

held that their contract was for resale of water under which the recovery of
commission was limited by law. The key issue in the case was whether the
Council was acting as an ‘agent’ for Thames Water or a ‘customer’ in which
case it was reselling water services and should have passed savings onto
tenants. In October 2020, the Royal Borough of Kingston-Upon-Thames lost
its appeal to the Court of Appeal over the High Court ruling.

The Council believed that there are no circumstances whereby any of the
income generated under this agreement is repayable to tenants the
judgement that at this time. The Council is taking further advise to identify
if a liability exists.

We identified the completeness of short- and long-term provisions
recognised and disclosure of contingent liabilities as a risk requiring
particular audit attention.

other sources of information to gain assurance over the completeness of
provisions recognised.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Other risks identified (continued)

Risk

Risk relates to

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Actuarial
Present Value
of Promised
Retirement
Benefits

gG abed

Pension Fund

The Fund discloses the Actuarial Present Value of
Promised Retirement Benefits within its Notes to the
Accounts. This represents a significant estimate in the
financial statements.

The Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement
Benefits is considered a significant estimate due to the
size of the numbers involved (£2.3 billion) and the
sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key
assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the Fund’s Actuarial
Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits as a risk
of material misstatement.

We will:

Update our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to
ensure that the Fund’s Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits is not
materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls.

Evaluate the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an actuary)
for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work.

Assess the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the
Fund’s valuation.

Assess the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Fund to the
actuary to estimate the liability.

Test the consistency of disclosures with the actuarial report from the actuary.

Undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made
by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any
additional procedures suggested within the report.

Valuation of
Level 2
Investments

Pension Fund

While level 2 investments do not carry the same level of
inherent risks associated with level 3 investments, there is
still an element of judgement involved in their valuation
as their very nature is such that they cannot be valued
directly.

We therefore identified the valuation of the Fund’s Level 2
investments as a risk of material misstatement.

We will:

Gain an understanding of the Fund’s process for valuing Level 2 investments and evaluate
the design of the associated controls.

Review the nature and basis of estimated values and consider what assurance
management has over the year end valuations provided for these types of investments.

Review the reconciliation of information provided by the individual fund manager’s
custodian and the Pension Scheme's own records and seek explanations for variances.

Independently request year-end confirmations from investment managers and custodian.

Review investment manager service auditor report on design effectiveness of internal
controls.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Other risks identified (continued)

Risk Risk relates to Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Contributions Pension Fund

Contributions from employers and employees’ represents  We will:

a significant percentage of the Fund’s revenue. .
We therefore identified the completeness and accuracy

of the transfer of contributions as a risk of material
misstatement. .

Evaluate the Fund's accounting policy for recognition of contributions for appropriateness.

Gain an understanding of the Fund's system for accounting for contribution income and
evaluate the design effectiveness of the associated controls.

Agree changes in Admitted/Scheduled bodies to supporting documentation and agree
total contributions for each employer to employer contributions reports.

Test a sample of contributions to source data to gain assurance over their accuracy and
occurrence.

Test relevant member data to gain assurance over management information to support a
predictive analytical review with reference to changes in member body payrolls and the
number of contributing employees to ensure that any unusual trends are satisfactorily
explained.

Pension Fund

Pension benefits payable represents a significant We will:

percentage of the Fund’s expenditure. .

We therefore identified the completeness, accuracy and
occurrence of the transfer of pension benefits payable as
a risk of material misstatement.

Evaluate the Fund's accounting policy for recognition of pension benefits expenditure for
appropriateness.

Gain an understanding of the Fund's system for accounting for pension benefits
expenditure and evaluate the design of the associated controls.

Test a sample of lump sums and associated individual pensions in payment by reference
to member files.

Test relevant member data to gain assurance over management information to support a
predictive analytical review with reference to changes in pensioner numbers and increases
applied in year to ensure that any unusual trends are satisfactorily explained.

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Accounting estimates and related disclosures

The Financial Reporting
Council issued an updated
ISA (UK) 540 (revised):
Auditing Accounting
Estimates and Related
-Hisclosures which includes
ignificant enhancements
respect of the audit risk
RBssessment process for
accounting estimates. We
made several significant
recommendations in our
2019/20 audit in relation to
the Council’s estimation
processes, three of which
were rated RED.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Introduction

Under ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018) auditors are required to
understand and assess an entity’s internal controls over accounting estimates,
including:

* The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s
financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;

*  How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or
knowledge related to accounting estimates;

* How the entity’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks
relating to accounting estimates;

* The entity’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates;
* The entity’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and
* How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.

As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the
role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important where
the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant
judgement.

Specifically do Audit Committee and Audit Committee (Advisory) members:

* Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make
the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;

» Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including
the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by
management; and

* Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?

Commercial in confidence




Accounting estimates and related disclosures

(continued])

Additional information that will be required

To ensure our compliance with this revised auditing standard, we will be
requesting further information from management and those charged with
governance during our audit for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Based on our knowledge of the Council we have identified the following material

accounting estimates for which this is likely to apply:

* Valuations of land and buildings, council dwellings, investment properties
and heritage assets

Depreciation

Year end provisions and accruals, specifically for demand led services such
as Adult’s and Children’s services

Provision for Business Rates Appeals

Credit loss and impairment allowances

. '-[9-86’8d .

Valuation of defined benefit net pension fund liabilities
* Fair value estimates

* Valuation of level 2 and level 3 investments

The Council’s Information systems

In respect of the Council’s information systems we are required to consider how

management identifies the methods, assumptions and source data used for each

material accounting estimate and the need for any changes to these. This
includes how management selects, or designs, the methods, assumptions and
data to be used and applies the methods used in the valuations.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

When the models used include increased complexity or subjectivity, as is the
case for many valuation models, auditors need to understand and assess the
controls in place over the models and the data included therein. Where
adequate controls are not in place we may need to report this as a significant
control deficiency and this could affect the amount of detailed substantive
testing required during the audit.

If management has changed the method for making an accounting estimate
we will need to fully understand management’s rationale for this change. Any
unexpected changes are likely to raise the audit risk profile of this accounting
estimate and may result in the need for additional audit procedures.

We are aware that the Council uses management experts in deriving some of
its more complex estimates, e.g. asset valuations and pensions liabilities.
However, it is important to note that the use of management experts does not
diminish the responsibilities of management and those charged with
governance to ensure that:

* Al accounting estimates and related disclosures included in the financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
financial reporting framework, and are materially accurate;

+ There are adequate controls in place at the Council (and where applicable
its service provider or management expert) over the models, assumptions
and source data used in the preparation of accounting estimates.



Commercial in confidence

Estimation uncertainty

guder ISA (UK) 540 we are required to consider the following:

Q ow management understands the degree of estimation uncertainty related to each
accounting estimate; and

) How management address this estimation uncertainty when selecting their point
estimate.

For example, how management identified and considered alternative, methods, assumptions
or source data that would be equally valid under the financial reporting framework, and why
these alternatives were rejected in favour of the point estimate used.

The revised standard includes increased emphasis on the importance of the financial
statement disclosures. Under ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018), auditors are required to
assess whether both the accounting estimates themselves and the related disclosures are
reasonable.

Where there is a material uncertainty, that is where there is a significant risk of a material
change to the estimated carrying value of an asset or liability within the next year, there
needs to be additional disclosures. Note that not all material estimates will have a material
uncertainty and it is also possible that an estimate that is not material could have a risk of
material uncertainty.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Where there is material estimation uncertainty, we would expect the financial statement
disclosures to detail:

*  What the assumptions and uncertainties are;
* How sensitive the assets and liabilities are to those assumptions, and why;

* The expected resolution of the uncertainty and the range of reasonably possible
outcomes for the next financial year; and

* An explanation of any changes made to past assumptions if the uncertainly is
unresolved.
Planning enquiries

As part of our planning risk assessment procedures we have sent inquiries to the
management that will be presented at the Audit Committee and Audit Committee (Advisory)
as part of our Informing the audit risk assessment report. We would appreciate a prompt
response to these enquires in due course.

Further information

Further details on the requirements of ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018) can be found in
the auditing standard on the Financial Reporting Council’s website:

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0faé9c03-49ec-49ae-a8c-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-
540 Revised-December-2018 final.pdf




Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other
audit responsibilities, as follows:

*  We read your Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement and any other
information published alongside your financial statements to check that they are
consistent with the financial statements on which we give an opinion and our knowledge
of the Council.

We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual Governance
Statement are in line with requirements set by CIPFA.

We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government
Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions.

£9 abed

We consider our other duties under legislation and the Code, as and when required,
including:

— giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2020/21 financial
statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in relation to the
2020/21 financial statements;

— issuing a report in the public interest or written recommendations to the Council
under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act).

— application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law
under section 28 or a judicial review under section 31 of the Act

— issuing an advisory notice under section 29 of the Act

*  We certify completion of our audit.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material
misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each material
class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and
transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will not be as
extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding, and
conclude on:

* whether a material uncertainty related to going concern exists; and

* the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements.

The Public Audit Forum has been designated by the Financial Reporting Council as a “SORP-
making body” for the purposes of maintaining and updating Practice Note 10: Audit of
financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (PN 10). It
is intended that auditors of public sector bodies read PN 10 in conjunction with (ISAs) (UK].

PN 10 has recently been updated to take account of revisions to ISAs (UK), including ISA (UK)
570 on going concern. The revisions to PN 10 in respect of going concern are important and
mark a significant departure from how this concept has been audited in the public sector in
the past. In particular, PN 10 allows auditors to apply a ‘continued provision of service
approach’ to auditing going concern, where appropriate. Applying such an approach should
enable us to increase our focus on wider financial resilience (as part of our VfM work) and
ensure that our work on going concern is proportionate for public sector bodies. We will
review the Council’s arrangements for securing financial sustainability as part of our Value
for Money work and provide a commentary on this in our Auditor’s Annual Report.



Materiality

The concept of materiality

Materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies
not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable
accounting practice and applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if
they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality for planning purposes

Council

We have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the gross expenditure of the
Council for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same benchmark. Materiality at the planning stage
of our audit is £16.6m (PY £16.5m) for the Council, which equates to approximately 1.5% of the Council’s prior
year gross expenditure for the year.

gension Fund

g\/e have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the net assets of the Pension

und for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same benchmark. Materiality at the planning stage of

Qur audit is £13.6m (PY £13.56m) for the Pension Fund, which equates to approximately 1% of the Pension Fund’s
ior year net assets.

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we become aware of facts
and circumstances that would have caused us to make a different determination of planning materiality.

Matters we will report to the Audit Committee and Audit Committee (Advisory)

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to our opinion on the
financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit Committee any unadjusted misstatements
of lesser amounts to the extent that these are identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication
with those charged with governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other
than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as
matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and whether judged by
any quantitative or qualitative criteria. In the context of the Council, we propose that an individual difference
could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £0.83m (PY £0.8m). For the Pension Fund, we

propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £0.68m
(PY £0.68m).

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the audit, we will
consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the Audit Committee to assist it in fulfilling its
governance responsibilities.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Council prior year gross expenditure

£1,111m

m Prior year gross expenditure
» Materiality

Pension Fund prior year net assets

£1,358m

m Prior year net assets
m Materiality

Commercial in confidence

Materiality

£16.6m

Council financial
statements materiality

(PY: £16.5m)

£0.83m

Council misstatements
reported to the Audit
Committee and Audit
Committee (Advisory)

(PY: £0.8m)

Materiality

£13.5m

Council financial
statements materiality

(PY: £13.5m)

£0.68m

Council misstatements
reported to the Audit
Committee and Audit
Committee (Advisory)

(PY: £0.68m)
18



Commercial in confidence

Value for Money arrangements

Revised approach to Value for Money

work for 2020/21 (5%
Y
On 1 April 2020, the National Audit Office introduced a

new Code of Audit Practice which comes into effect from

audit year 2020/21. The Code introduced a revised Improving economy, efficiency Financial Sustainability Governance
Y d effect
. and effectiveness
approach to the audit of Value for Money. (VFM) Arrangements for ensuring the Arrangements for ensuring that
There are three main changes arising from the NAO’s Arrangements for'lmprc.)vmg t|:1e bodg can cc?nfmue to de||ver. the ‘b?dg mokes gppropnqte.
. way the bo elivers its services. services. This includes plannin ecisions in the right way. This
B approach y the body del t Th ludes pl g d the right way. Th
Q ' This includes arrangements for resources to ensure adequate includes arrangements for budget
(& Anew set of key criteria, covering financial understanding costs and finances and maintain setting and management, risk
(D sustainability, governance and improvements in delivering efficiencies and sustainable levels of spending management, and ensuring the
o) economy, efficiency and effectiveness improving outcomes for service over the medium term (3-5 years) body makes decisions based on
users. appropriate information

Q7 More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the
auditor to produce a commentary on arrangements
across all of the key criteria, rather than the current
‘reporting by exception’ approach

+ The replacement of the binary (qualified /
unqualified] approach to VFM conclusions, with far
more sophisticated judgements on performance, as
well as key recommendations on any significant
weaknesses in arrangements identified during the
audit.

The Code require auditors to consider whether the body
has put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. When reporting on these arrangements, the
Code requires auditors to structure their commentary on
arrangements under three specified reporting criteria.
These are as set out below:

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 19



Commercial in confidence

Risks of significant VFM weaknesses

As part of our planning work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the body’s arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources that we needed to perform further procedures on.
Whilst our planning assessment did not identify any significant weaknesses in arrangements at this stage, we have
highlighted further key areas of focus which are listed below. We may need to make recommendations following the
completion of our work. The potential different types of recommendations we could make are set out in the second table

below.
2v)
jabl
Q
geg areas of focus Potential types of recommendations
QMe Local Government operating environment has been significantly impacted by the A range of different recommendations could be made following the completion of work on
pandemic and the future funding regime remains uncertain and this lack of certainty will risks of significant weakness, as follows:

impact on the Council’s ability for long term planning. Our Value for Money work will

primarily focus on the aspects listed below, but may increase in scope as further work is .
Statutory recommendation

performed
. . . . o Written recommendations to the body under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the
* The Council’s arrangements in response to the Covid-19 pandemic and capitalising on Local Audit and Accountability Act 201k. A recommendation under schedule 7
the benefits from the different models of service delivery and ways of working bought requires the body to discuss and respond publicly to the report.

about by the pandemic.

* The Council’s arrangements for setting the Medium Term Financial Plan and achieving Key recommendation

financial sustainability. The Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant

*  The Council’s arrangements for service transformation and cultural change. weaknesses in arrangements to secure value for money they should make
recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the body.

* The Council’s arrangements for working with its key partners to deliver services . !
We have defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.

efficiently and improve the lives of local residents.
Improvement recommendation

These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in
place at the body, but are not made as a result of identifying significant
weaknesses in the body’s arrangements

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 20



Audit logistics and team

Audit Committee
and Audit Committee

Audit Committee
and Audit Committee

Commercial in confidence

Audit
Committee
and Audit Committee

(Advisory) (Advisory) (Advisory)
March 2021 September 2021 November 2021
Planning and risk .
‘ Year end audit ‘ ‘
assessment
March 2021 July to September -
Audit Findings e s
‘ Auditor’s
Audit Plan Report
. Annual
Audit and Report
. Pension Fund P
Paul Grady, Key Audit Partner Opinion

Paul is responsible for overall quality control; accounts opinions;
final authorisation of reports; liaison with the Audit Committee, the
Chief Executive and the Corporate Director Resources. He will share
his wealth of knowledge and experience across the sector providing
challenge and sharing good practice. Paul will ensure our audit is
tailored specifically to you, and he is responsible for the overall
quality of our audit work. Paul will sign your audit opinion.

Ade Oyerinde, Senior Manager

Ade is responsible for overall audit management, quality assurance of
audit work and output, and liaison with the Audit Committee, CDR and
finance team. He will undertake reviews of the team’s work and draft
reports, ensuring they remain clear, concise and understandable. Ade
will be responsible for the delivery of our work on your arrangements in
place to secure value formoney.

Nick Halliwell, Audit Manager

Nick will support Ade in his work to ensure the early delivery of audit
testing and agreement of accounting issues. He will attend Audit and
Committee and Audit Committee (Advisory) meetings and draft reports,
ensuring they remain clear, concise and understandable to all. He will also
carry out first reviews of the team’s work and also oversee the review of
the Whole of Government Accounts

Lydia Smith, Audit Incharge

Lydia is responsible is for management and delivery of audit fieldwork,
including both interim and final accounts work. She will monitor the
deliverables, manage the query log with your finance team and highlight
any significant issues and adjustments to senior management.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Audited body responsibilities

Where audited bodies do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that this does not
impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of time, thereby disadvantaging
other audits. Where the elapsed time to complete an audit exceeds that agreed due to a client not
meeting its obligations we will not be able to maintain a team on site. Similarly, where additional
resources are needed to complete the audit due to a client not meeting their obligations we are not
able to guarantee the delivery of the audit to the agreed timescales. In addition, delayed audits will
incur additional audit fees.

Our requirements
To minimise the risk of a delayed audit, you need to ensure that you:

* Produce draft financial statements of good quality by the agreed timetable you have agreed
with us, including all notes, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement.

* Ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in accordance
with the working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with you

* Ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are
reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples for
testing. These reports should be cleansed so that reversing transactions are removed.

* Provide debtor and creditor listings that are the balances outstanding at the year end

+ Ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise agreed) the
planned period of the audit

* The Council’s experts provide clarity and detail over their work to enable auditors to challenge
the accounting and valuation judgements used.

* Respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

21



Audit fees

PSAA awarded a contract of audit for Islington Council and the Islington Council Pension Fund to begin with effect from 2018/19. The scale fee
in the contract was £156,179 for the Council audit and £16,170 for the Pension Fund. Since that time, there have been a number of
developments, particularly in relation to the revised Code and ISA’s which are relevant for the 2020/21 audit.

The 2020/21 Code introduces a revised approach to our VFM work. This requires auditors to produce a commentary on arrangements across
all of the key criteria, rather than the current ‘reporting by exception’ approach. Auditors now have to make far more sophisticated
judgements on performance, as well as issue key recommendations if any significant weaknesses in arrangements are identified during the
audit. We will be working with the NAO and other audit firms to discuss and share learning in respect of common issues arising across the
sector.

e new approach will be more challenging for audited bodies, involving discussions at a wider and more strategic level. Both the reporting,
(@nd the planning and risk assessment which underpins it, will require more audit time, delivered through a richer skill mix than in previous
(Dears. Our estimate is that for your audit, this will result in an increased fee of £xxxxx (xx%). This is in line with increases we are proposing at
¢s our local audits.

%Iditionollg, across all sectors and firms, the FRC has set out its expectation of improved financial reporting from organisations and the need
for auditors to demonstrate increased scepticism and challenge and to undertake additional and more robust testing, as noted in the number
of revised ISAs issued by the FRC that are applicable to audits of financial statements commencing on or after 156 December 2019, as detailed
in Appendix 1.

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of the FRC with regard to audit quality and public sector financial
reporting. We have engaged an audit expert to improve the level of assurance we require for property valuations estimates, which has been
included in our proposed audit fee. Our proposed work and fee for 2020/21, as set out below, is detailed overleaf and has been agreed with
the Executive Director of Resources

Proposed fee

Actual Fee 2018/19 Actual Fee 2019/20 2020/21
Council Audit £156,179 £235,900 £xxxxx
Pension Fund audit £16,170 £28,750 £ XXXXX
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £172,349 £264,650 £XXXXX

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Assumptions

In setting the above fees, we have assumed

that the Council will:

* prepare a good quality set of accounts,
supported by comprehensive and well
presented working papers which are
ready at the start of the audit

* provide appropriate analysis, support
and evidence to support all critical
judgements and significant judgements
made during the course of preparing
the financial statements

* provide early notice of proposed
complex or unusual transactions which
could have a material impact on the
financial statements.

Relevant professional standards

In preparing our fee estimate, we have had
regard to all relevant professional
standards, including paragraphs 4.1 and
4.2 of the FRC’s Ethical Standard (revised
2019) which stipulate that the Engagement
Lead (Key Audit Partner) must set a fee
sufficient to enable the resourcing of the

audit with partners and staff with
appropriate time and skill to deliver an
audit to the required professional and
Ethical standards.

22



Commercial in confidence

Audit fees - detailed analysis Council

Scale fee published by PSAA £156,179

Ongoing increases to scale fee first identified in 2019/20

Raising the bar/regulatory factors £12,000
Enhanced audit procedures for Property, Plant and Equipment including additional work at accounts £34,400
_[5nh0nced audit procedures for Pensions £3,500
&ovid-w impact £29,821
E(;S&udit fee 2019/20 £235,900

New issues for 2020/21

Additional work on Value for Money (VfM) under new NAO Code ExxxxX
Increased audit requirements of revised ISAs ExXXXX
Work on the migration to the new income system Exxxxx
Proposed increase to agreed 2019/20 fee ExxXXX
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £ xxxxx

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 23



Commercial in confidence

Audit fees - detailed analysis Pension Fund

Scale fee published by PSAA £16,170

Ongoing increases to scale fee first identified in 2019/20

Raising the bar/regulatory factors £5,000
Enhanced audit procedures for Level 3 investments £3,830
Eovid-w impact £3,750
Q
(MAudit fee 2019/20 £28,750

[ |

QUew issues for 2020/21

Additional work on Direct Property investments Exxxxx
Increased audit requirements of revised ISAs ExxxxX
Proposed increase to agreed 2019/20 fee Exxxxx
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £xxxxX

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 24



Independence and non-audit

Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all
significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and
independence of the firm or covered persons. relating to our independence. We
encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with
us. We will also discuss with you if we make additional significant judgements
surrounding independence matters.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our
independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We
ve complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard (Revised 2019)
nd we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are
(Qble to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. Further, we have
(Bomplied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note
~{j issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical requirements
Her auditors of local public bodies.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the
requirements of the Ethical Standard. For the purposes of our audit we have made
enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council.

Other services
The other services provided by Grant Thornton are set out in the table opposite

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services
to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These
services are consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to
your auditors. Any changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and
non-audit related services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton
International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings
report at the conclusion of the audit.

None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Service Fees £

Commercial in confidence

services

Threats

Safeguards

Audit related

Certification of Housing 20,000

Self-Interest

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not

Benefit subsidy claim (because considered a significant threat to independence as
thisis a the fee for this work is low in comparison to the total
recurring fee for the audit and in particular relative to Grant
fee] Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed

fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat
to an acceptable level.

Agreed upon 5,000 As above As above

Procedures relating to

the Pooling of Housing

Capital Receipts

Agreed upon 5,000 As above As above

Procedures relating to

the Teachers’ Pensions

end of year certificate

Non-audit related

CFO insights 10,000 As above As above

subscription

25



Commercial in confidence

Appendix 1: Revised Auditor Standards and

application guidance

FRC revisions to Auditor Standards and associated application guidance

The following Auditing Standards and associated application guidance that were applicable to 19/20 audits, have been revised or updated by the FRC, with additional

requirements for auditors for implementation in 2020/21 audits and beyond.

Date of revision

Application
to 2020/21
Audits

TPHOC (UK) 1 - Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, and other Assurance and Related
Q¥ervice Engagements

D

November 2019

~$A (UK) 200 - Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with International
Ntandards on Auditing (UK)

January 2020

ISA (UK] 220 - Quality Control for an Audit of Financial Statements

November 2019

ISA (UK) 230 - Audit Documentation

January 2020

ISA (UK] 240 - The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements

January 2020

ISA (UK] 250 Section A - Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of Financial Statements

November 2019

ISA (UK) 250 Section B - The Auditor’s Statutory Right and Duty to Report to Regulators od Public Interest Entities and Regulators
of Other Entities in the Financial Sector

November 2019

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

26



Commercial in confidence

Appendix 1: Revised Auditor Standards and
application guidance (continued)

Application to

Date of revision 2020/21 Audits
ISA (UK] 260 - Communication With Those Charged With Governance January 2020 o
ISA (UK] 315 - Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement Through Understanding of the Entity and Its July 2020
Environment 9
_IUSA (UK) 500 - Audit Evidence January 2020 o
jabl
@
\IfA (UK) B40 - Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures December 2018
@ o
ISA (UK) 570 - Going Concern September 2019
ISA (UK) 580 - Written Representations January 2020
ISA (UK] 600 - Special considerations - Audits of Group Financial Statements (Including the Work of Component Auditors) November 2019 0
ISA (UK] 620 - Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert November 2019 l
ISA (UK) 700 - Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements January 2020 o

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 27



Commercial in confidence

Appendix 1: Revised Auditor Standards and
application guidance (continued)

Application to
Date of revision 2020/21 Audits

December 2020 o

ISA (UK] 701 - Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report January 2020

ISA (UK] 720 - The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Other Information November 2019

ractice Note 10: Audit of Financial Statements of Public Sector Bodies in the United Kingdom

v/ obed

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 28



G, abed

O Grant Thornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



This page is intentionally left blank



General Enquiries of Management — Islington Council and Islington Council Pension Fund

Question Management response

1. What do you regard as the key events or
issues that will have a significant impact on
the financial statements for 2020/217?

2. Have you considered the
appropriateness of the accounting policies
adopted by Islington Council and Islington
Council Pension Fund?

Have there been any events or transactions
that may cause you to change or adopt new
accounting policies?

3. Is there any use of financial instruments,
including derivatives?

4. Are you aware of any significant
transactions outside the normal course of
business?

5. Are you aware of any changes in
circumstances that would lead to
impairment of non-current assets?

6. Are you aware of any guarantee
contracts?

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss
contingencies and/or un-asserted claims
that may affect the financial statements?

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you
provide details of those solicitors utilised by
Islington Council and Islington Council
Pension Fund during the year? Please
indicate where they are working on open
litigation or contingencies from prior years.

9. Have any of the Islington Council and
Islington Council Pension Fund’s service
providers reported any items of fraud, non-
compliance with laws and regulations or
uncorrected misstatements which would
affect the financial statements?

The single biggest event that has affected the financial statements continues to be
Covid-19.

Yes, we have considered the appropriateness and have had no reason to change or
adopt new accounting policies.

No

Covid-19 has resulted in numerous additional transactions as per 1 above. Some of
these have been administering an activity on behalf of Government such as the
business grants schemes in very short timescales.

Apart from the COVID 19 impact, no.

No

No

Islington council
1.Sharpe Pritchard

Leisure management contract — deed of variations dealing with impact of Covid-19.

2 DAC Beachcroft and Browne Jacobson — panel solicitors for non-recent child abuse
and other historic civil litigation cases, and specifically DAC Beachcroft advising on
the draft non-recent child abuse support payment scheme.

3 Kennedys

Claim on behalf of the council arising out of fire at a leisure centre

4 Pinsent Masons

Representing council in relation to proposed development at Finsbury Square

5 Bevan Brittan

Expiry of PFI street property 2 contract

Islington council pension fund
None

No

Page 77



10. Can you provide details of other N/A
advisors consulted during the year and the
issues on which they were consulted?

Fraud Risk Assessment — Islington Council and Islington Council Pension Fund

Question Management response

1. Have Islington Council and Islington Delivery of the 20/21 audit plan did not yield material findings in relation to fraud.
Council Pension Fund assessed the risk of Final Internal Audit reports, relating to planned audit delivery, have been routinely
material misstatement in the financial shared with External Audit throughout 20/21. External Audit has also been sighted of
statements due to fraud? high priority Internal Audit recommendations as part of the bi-annual Audit

Committee reporting process.

The Council’s Principal Risk Report (PRR), which was presented to Audit Committee
in September 2020 and January 2021 (and shared with External Audit as part of
Audit Committee papers), includes a principal risk in relation to serious fraudulent
activity. Fraud was assessed as moderate risk indicating the inherent risk of fraud at
a local authority. The PRR also outlines mitigating actions.

How has the process of identifying and
responding to the risk of fraud been
undertaken and what are the results of this
process?

The major risks are explained within the statement of accounts. The individual
How do the Authority and Pension Fund’s  issues are considered as part of the financial monitoring preparation and also as part
risk management processes link to financial of the consideration of the required balances needed as part of budget setting.
reporting?

2. What have you determined to be the Delivery of the 20/21 audit plan did not yield material findings in relation to fraud. The
classes of accounts, transactions, and Council continues to operate without purchase orders, which is a key control in an
disclosures most at risk to fraud? accounts payable process.

In 20/21 there was a risk of fraud relating to the payments of grants/dispensations as
a result of the pandemic. Controls were put in place by the Revenues team, ahead of
payment of grants. It is anticipated that the upcoming National Fraud Initiative will
provide potential data of potentially fraudulent payments for further
consideration/investigation.

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, A number of investigations have taken place in the 20/21 year and investigation
suspected, or alleged fraud, errors, or other progress/outcomes were reported to Audit Committee in May 2020, August 2020,
irregularities either within Islington Council ~September 2020 and November 2020; with a further report tabled for March 2021.
and Islington Council Pension Fund as a Audit Committee papers, including the fraud and whistleblowing reports, will have
whole or within specific departments since  been seen by Grant Thornton in their capacity as external auditors.

i ?
1 April 20207 In respect of financial loss, the 2019/20 Annual Fraud Report presented to Audit

As a management team, how do you Committee in September 2020, highlighted a case of theft of £755.00 which was
communicate risk issues (including fraud)  investigated, but no suspect could be identified. The 2019/20 Annual Fraud Report
to those charged with governance? also stated that Housing Investigations reported that the team had undertaken 3

prosecutions and recovered 47 properties. 8 right to buy applications were cancelled,
saving the Council £823,500 in discounts had the properties been sold.

The Council has a robust anti-fraud and corruption strategy and suspected/alleged
fraud is investigated by qualified investigators employed by the Council.

The Council’s Principal Risk Report (PRR), considers the Council’s principal risks
including the risk of fraud. The PRR is reviewed, updated and approved at
Departmental Management Teams and the Corporate Management Board before
being presented to Audit Committee.

In relation to specific fraud risks identified following individual investigations, an
investigation report (with control recommendations where appropriate) is shared with
management.

Page 78



4. Have you identified any specific fraud
risks?

Do you have any concerns there are areas
that are at risk of fraud?

Are there particular locations within
Islington Council and Islington Council
Pension Fund where fraud is more likely to
occur?

5. What processes do Islington Council and
Islington Council Pension Fund have in
place to identify and respond to risks of
fraud?

6. How do you assess the overall control
environment for Islington Council and
Islington Council Pension Fund, including:

» the existence of internal controls,
including segregation of duties;
and

+ the process for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of
internal control.

If internal controls are not in place or not
effective, where are the risk areas and what
mitigating actions have been taken?

What other controls are in place to help
prevent, deter, or detect fraud?

Are there any areas where there is a
potential for override of controls or
inappropriate influence over the financial
reporting process (for example because of
undue pressure to achieve financial
targets)?

Delivery of the 20/21 audit plan did not yield material findings in relation to fraud. As
part of Internal Audit annual and interim reports, high priority recommendations
arising from Internal Audit reviews that had attracted a No or Limited assurance
rating, were reported to Audit Committee. These high priority recommendations will
have been seen by Grant Thornton in their capacity as external auditors via the
September 2020 and January 2021 Audit Committee updates on the delivery of the
audit plan (external audit also receive copies of final Internal Audit reports relating to
planned delivery). Internal Audit have received satisfactory management responses
to audit recommendations in 20/21 and follow up activity, to assess the level of
implementation of recommendations, will take place in 21/22.

The Council continues to operate without purchase orders, which is a key control in
an accounts payable process. This specific weakness will be addressed during the
21/22 financial year. Specific fraud risks have been shared with the Audit Committee
and External Auditor via the September 2020 annual fraud report and biannual
whistleblowing report 2021.

In 20/21 there was a risk of fraud relating to the payments of grants/dispensations as
a result of the pandemic. Controls were put in place by the Revenues team and the
team administering the discretionary grants, ahead of payment of grants. It is
anticipated that the upcoming National Fraud Initiative will provide potential data of
potentially fraudulent payments for further consideration/investigation.

In relation to inherent fraud risk, locations that operate outside the Council’s standard
control framework or that are geographically separate from the Council inherently
have an increased risk of fraud e.g. Voluntary Sector Organisations, schools and
Tenant Management Organisations. There is also a greater inherent risk of fraud in
those areas handling financial transactions, and the potential impact of fraud is
greater in areas handling high value transactions (e.g. Treasury).

The Council has a robust anti-fraud strategy and whistleblowing policy in place.
Investigations are referred and investigated pursuant to these processes.
Investigation outcomes are reported to the Corporate Management Board and Audit
Committee.

The Council’s Principal Risk Report also identifies serious fraudulent activity as a
principal risk, and details action to mitigate the risk of fraud.

The control and governance environment is assessed through delivery of the annual
Internal Audit plan, and the wider context of governance arrangements as included in
the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. The Head of Internal Audit provides an
annual opinion on the Council’'s overall control environment within the Annual
Governance Statement.

The annual opinion categories range from No Assurance, Limited Assurance, and
Moderate Assurance to Substantial Assurance. The annual opinion given for 2016-17
to 2019-20 was Moderate Assurance, indicating that overall the Council’s systems for
control, risk and governance were generally adequate with some improvement
required. The Head of Internal Audit opinion for 20/21 will be considered when the
audit plan concludes and the wider Annual Governance Statement is drafted early in
Q1 21/22.

High priority recommendations arising from Internal Audit reviews that have attracted
a No or Limited assurance rating, are reporting to Audit Committee. High priority
recommendations will have been seen by Grant Thornton in their capacity as external
auditors via the September 2020 and January 2021 Audit Committee updates on the
delivery of the audit plan. Internal Audit have received satisfactory management
responses to audit recommendation in 20/21 and follow up activity, to assess the level
of implementation of recommendations, will take place in 21/22.

The council does not operate incentive schemes which would drive undue pressure to
manipulate financial results. Equally the council’s internal audit plan and

Page 79



7. Are there any areas where there is
potential for misreporting?

8. How do Islington Council and Islington
Council Pension Fund communicate and
encourage ethical behaviours and business
processes of its staff and contractors?

How do you encourage staff to report their
concerns about fraud?

What concerns are staff expected to report
about fraud?

Have any significant issues been reported?

9. From a fraud and corruption perspective,
what are considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts
identified, assessed, and managed?

10. Are you aware of any related party
relationships or transactions that could give
rise to instances of fraud?

How do you mitigate the risks associated
with fraud related to related party
relationships and transactions?

11. What arrangements are in place to
report fraud issues and risks to the Audit
Committee and Audit Committee
(Advisory)?

whistleblowing procedures have demonstrated they are effective at identifying
procedural improprieties which cause incorrect reporting of financial results.

Key areas where there is a risk of misreporting are identified within the significant
accounting estimates section of the Audit Plan. Specifically:

e Valuation of land and buildings

e Depreciation

e Provisions and accruals

e Provision for business rates appeals

e Credit loss and impairment allowances

e Valuation of defined benefit net pension fund liabilities
e Fair value estimates

e Valuation of level 2 and 3 investments

An anti-fraud strategy and whistleblowing policy is in place to encourage fraud
reporting and directing staff how and where to report cases of suspected fraud and
wrongdoing.

Human Resources policies and procedures, and our code of conduct also
communicate and encourage ethical behaviours. Contractor behaviours are also
monitored via our contract management procedures.

A number of investigations have taken place in the 20/21 year and investigation
progress/outcomes were reported to Audit Committee in May 2020, August 2020,
September 2020 and November 2020; with a further report tabled for March 2021.
Audit Committee papers, including the fraud and whistleblowing reports, will have
been seen by Grant Thornton in their capacity as external auditors A current
investigation in relation to an alleged fraud perpetrated against the Council’s Pension
Fund has just commenced and external audit will be kept updated on the outcomes of
this investigation.

In respect of financial fraud, any post with the capacity to transact contains an inherent
risk of fraud. In respect of corruption, leadership posts may be considered higher risk.

Financial fraud risks are managed via control design in relation to accounting
processes.

Risks of corruption are managed via control design in relation to accounting
processes, Human Resources policies and procedures, and the Council’s code of
conduct which also communicates and encourages ethical behaviours.

Delivery of the annual Internal Audit plan did not raise concerns surrounding related
party transactions. A current fraud investigation in relation to an alleged theft and
fraud from the Council’'s Pension Fund has just commenced. At this point, we are
unable to determine the loss to the Council.

Where risks have been identified as part of individual internal audits and fraud
investigations. Control recommendations are made and subject to follow up reporting
to ensure that the recommendations have been implemented.

The council seeks information in relation to declarations of interests of both senior
officers and members. An additional line of defence is then the audit of the related
parties' arrangements within the council.

The overarching risk of serious fraudulent activity is considered within the Principal
Risk Report which is reported to Audit Committee (in September 2020 and January
2021). In relation to specific investigations, once an investigation is completed, the
investigation report is produced which contains control recommendations where

Page 80



How does the Audit Committee and Audit  appropriate. Fraud issues/outcomes of investigations are reported to CMB and Audit
Committee (Advisory) exercise oversight Committee bi-annually (whistleblowing) and annually (annual fraud report).

over management's processes for
identifying and responding to risks of fraud
and breaches of internal control?

Audit Committee have reviewed and approved changes to the Council’s
Whistleblowing Policy in May 2020 and January 2021. Audit Committee have noted
the outcome of investigations via the routine reporting process as outlined above.
What has been the outcome of these Where recommendations have been made in relation to key investigations Audit
arrangements so far this year? Committee has sought assurance regarding the implementation of the
recommendations arising from the investigations.

12. Are you aware of any whistle blowing A number of whistleblowing complaints were made in the 2020-21 year. External Audit
potential or complaints by potential whistle have been privy to those complaints as part of the detailed bi-annual whistleblowing
blowers? If so, what has been your monitoring reports that are shared with Audit Committee.

response? . . ) . . . .
The Council has a robust whistleblowing policy which was revised with amendments

approved by Audit Committee in May 2020 and a further revision in January 2021. The
Council takes any allegations of impropriety very seriously. All allegations are
managed in line with the policy. Complaints are investigated by qualified investigators
employed by the Council. Where appropriate, external investigators are engaged.

In terms of key whistleblowing investigations, the progress in implementing the
recommendations pertaining of whistleblowing investigations are reported to Audit
Committee biannually.

13. Have any reports been made under the No reports were made to Corporate Investigations under the Bribery Act in the 20-21

Bribery Act? year to date.

Laws and Regulations — Islington Council and Islington Council Pension Fund

Question Management response

1. How does management gain assurance Council’s Legal Service provides proactive updates, training and advice to Chief
that all relevant laws and regulations have Officers and Members on new legislation and case law developments and changes to
existing legislation and regulations. All decision-making reports to the Council, its
Committees and the Executive include appropriate legal implications. Legal Services
What arrangements does Islington Council ~also provide legal implication comments for reports to Chief Officers and to meetings
of the Corporate Management Board. A representative of the Service attends all
Council, Executive, Planning and Licensing meetings and other meetings. when
requested.

been complied with?

and Islington Council Pension Fund have in
place to prevent and detect non-compliance
with laws and regulations?

Are you aware of any changes to the
Authority and Pension Fund’s regulatory
environment that may have a significant
impact on the Authority and Pension Fund’s
financial statements?

2. How is the Audit Committee and Audit The Audit Committee has appointed a Pensions Sub-Committee. The Terms of
Committee (Advisory) provided with Reference of the Pensions Sub-Committee include:
assurance that all relevant laws and

. i . e To administer all matters concerning the Council's pension investments in
regulations have been complied with?

accordance with the law and Council policy.
To establish a strategy for disposition of the pension investment portfolio.

e To determine the delegation of powers of management of the fund and to set
boundaries for the managers' discretion.

e To review the investments made by the investment managers and from time to
time consider the desirability of continuing or terminating the appointment of
the investment managers. (Note: The allocation of resources to the Pension
Fund is a function of the Executive).

e To consider the overall solvency of the Pension Fund, including assets and
liabilities and to make appropriate recommendations to the Executive
regarding the allocation of resources to the Pension Fund.

Page 81



The Pensions Sub-Committee meets approximately every three months. The
committee regularly receives reports on the performance of the pension fund,
including assessments of the key risks of individual funds and receives detailed
updates from individual fund managers. The committee also regularly reviews the
investment strategy and the business plan. The committee received a paper on the
impact of the Covid pandemic in September this year.

3. Have there been any instances of non-  The council is subject to many laws and regulations. We are not aware of any
compliance or suspected non-compliance instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance since 1 April 2020 other
with laws and regulation since 1 April 2020 than:
with an on-going impact on the 2020/21 1 Those that may have been set out in the Annual Governance Statement (AGS).
financial statements? 2 As specified in successful claims brought against the council and dealt with by our
legal department or insurers.
3 As may be specified in proven complaints received by the council and dealt with
through the council’s complaints procedure.

4. Is there any actual or potential litigation  Please see contingent liabilities set out in Islington Council’s statement of accounts.
or claims that would affect the financial

statements?

5. What arrangements does Islington Litigation and claims are referred to Islington Council’s Legal Services Department
Council and Islington Council Pension Fund (or its external insurers if the claim is covered by insurance). They are evaluated and
have in place to identify, evaluate, and dealt with by Legal Services and, where considered appropriate due to their

account for litigation or claims? complexity or value, external lawyers and /or counsel are appointed.

6. Have there been any reports from other  The Council has not received any formal reports from regulatory bodies regarding
regulatory bodies, such as HM Revenues  non-compliance. The Council is presently in an ongoing business risk review in
and Customs which indicate non- relation to VAT with HMRC. This will be ongoing in to 21/22.

compliance?

Related Parties — Islington Council and Islington Council Pension Fund

Question Management response

1. Have there been any changes in the Related Parties and the nature of the relationships are shown in the Statement of
related parties disclosed in Islington Accounts. These are as expected and no significant change from last year
Council and Islington Council Pension

Fund’'s 2019/20 financial statements?

If so, please summarise:

+ the nature of the relationship
between these related parties and
Islington Council and Islington
Council Pension Fund, whether
Islington Council and Islington
Council Pension Fund has entered
or plans to enter into any
transactions with these related
parties.

+ the type and purpose of these
transactions

Page 82



2. What controls does Islington Council and
Islington Council Pension Fund have in
place to identify, account for, and disclose
related party transactions and
relationships?

3. What controls are in place to authorise
and approve significant transactions and
arrangements with related parties?

4. What controls are in place to authorise
and approve significant transactions
outside of the normal course of business?

There are templates that members and chief officers complete as a part of their
annual declarations capturing relationships with other entities. Controls ensure all
appropriate individuals have responded.

Any pecuniary interests must be declared prior to making any decisions and are
dealt with in line with the council’s constitution.

The council also undertakes a review as part of the completion of the Statement of
Accounts which seeks to identify related party organisations which have not been
identified through the previous processes set out.

Related party transactions follow the same council authorisation process as any
other transactions (including appropriate authorisation processes, approval levels &
segregation of duties), whether part of normal business activity or not.

See above

Accounting Estimates — Islington Council and Islington Council Pension Fund

Question Management response

1. What are the classes of transactions,
events, and conditions, that are significant
to the financial statements that give rise to
the need for, or changes in, accounting
estimate and related disclosures?

2. How does the Authority and Pension
Fund'’s risk management process identify
and addresses risks relating to accounting
estimates?

3. How do management identify the
methods, assumptions or source data, and
the need for changes in them, in relation to
key accounting estimates?

4. How do management review the
outcomes of previous accounting
estimates?

5. Were any changes made to the
estimation processes in 2020/21 and, if so,
what was the reason for these?

6. How do management identify the need
for and apply specialised skills or
knowledge related to accounting
estimates?

7. How does the Authority and Pension
Fund determine what control activities are
needed for significant accounting

The type of transactions are documented in the statements of accounts under
Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In addition to assessing the materiality of estimates, the council manages risks
around estimates by considering historical experience, specialist advice where
necessary, current trends and other relevant factors in arriving at the estimates.

Management seeks best practice recommended by CIPFA and/or industry standard
in identifying the best method and assumptions and whether changes are warranted.
In addition, specialist advice is sought where necessary.

Management compares actual results to estimates made previously, taking into
account materiality and assumptions made. Where significant, and impacting on
financial results, these would be communicated in our formal monitoring processes.

No changes made.

Decisions are made based on the complexity of the estimate and the level of
technical skill and knowledge available within the Council and that informs whether
an expert is required.

The type of transactions that warrant significant accounting estimates are identified
in 1 above and management carries out a review before year end to determine the
best way of determining those estimates following a review of actuals, current trends
and audit feedback. In addition, management perform a robust review of estimates

Page 83



estimates, including the controls at any
service providers or management experts?

8. How do management monitor the
operation of control activities related to
accounting estimates, including the key
controls at any service providers or
management experts?

9. What is the nature and extent of
oversight and governance over
management’s financial reporting process
relevant to accounting estimates, including:

- Management’s process for making
significant accounting estimates.

- The methods and models used.

- The resultant accounting
estimates included in the financial
statements.

10. Are management aware of transactions,
events, conditions (or changes in these)
that may give rise to recognition or
disclosure of significant accounting
estimates that require significant judgement
(other than those in Appendix A)?

11. Are the management arrangements for
the accounting estimates, as detailed in
Appendix A reasonable?

12. How is the Audit Committee and Audit
Committee (Advisory) provided with
assurance that the arrangements for
accounting estimates are adequate?

prepared by experts by being clear in the brief given to estimates and challenging
assumptions and reasonableness plus benchmarking with other parties where
appropriate to help assess reasonableness.

The key estimates are monitored and reviewed by specific officers that are
responsible for those areas thus are well versed with what controls are required to
ensure a robust review.

Management review of the statement of accounts which includes reviewing the basis
and appropriateness (see 2 above) of key accounting estimates and in some cases
seeking specialist advice where in house technical skills/ knowledge is not available.

No

Yes

Significant estimates would be quality assured within the department prior to
inclusion within the statement of accounts. This would include designing a quality
process to undertake the estimation (first line of defence). This estimation would be
subject to a quality assurance process and testing of reasonableness (second line of
defence). The design of the external audit would then provide the third line of
defence for material areas of estimation. Those estimates provided by specialists
will be assured through the design of the commission and through the
reasonableness checking by the client service area.

Page 84



Agenda Item B2
ISLINGTON

Finance
7 Newington Barrow Way
London N7 7EP

Report of: Corporate Director of Resources

Meeting of: Date: Ward(s):
Audit Committee 16" March 2021 All
Delete as appropriate \ Non-exempt

SUBJECT: Risk Management Update — February 2021

1.1

2.1

3.1

Synopsis

Audit Committee requested, at its meeting of 28th July 2020, that a Risk Management update
be included on Committee’s agenda as a standing item. The purpose of standing item is to
provide Committee with an update on risk management activity that has taken place in between
comprehensive reports to Committee. The paper provides Committee with an insight of risk
management activity that occurs outside of the Principal Risk Reporting cycle.

Recommendations

Committee is asked to note the report; which includes key activity since the last comprehensive
Principal Risk Report to Committee in September 2020 and the previous Risk Management
Update that was presented to Committee in January 2021.

Principal Risks and related mitigating activity

The next comprehensive Principal Risk Report for Committee is due in May 2021. Committee
noted the last Principal Risk Report on 29t September 2020. Actions to mitigate Principal Risks
continue to be implemented to target dates (as listed in Appendix 2 of the report, a copy can be
accessed here). The Council’s Risk Manager has continued to provide steer to risk leads as
requested.

Page 85
Page 1 of 4


https://democracy.islington.gov.uk/documents/g4040/Public%20reports%20pack%2029th-Sep-2020%2019.00%20Audit%20Committee%20and%20Audit%20Committee%20Advisory.pdf?T=10

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

Covid-19

Covid-19 has seen a wide-ranging and large-scale impact on Islington as a borough — affecting
our citizens, partners, businesses, and us as an organisation. This has resulted in:

e Shifts in the delivery of services;

e Changes in where and how people work;

e Resourcing changes;

e Financial challenges.
On 5% January 2021 the United Kingdom entered a state of National Lockdown.

Current key activity includes:

e The Council’s Lateral Flow Testing began in December 2020;

e Our emergency response is active, with Gold and Silver command in place, providing
regular updates and information to the senior leadership or risks and issues;

e Three rapid testing sites are open across the borough, making testing of frontline critical
workers easier;

e All of our older residents and staff in older peoples' care homes have now had the
opportunity to get the first vaccination;

e Council staff in the priority vaccination groups have also started receiving their
vaccinations.

Financial Resilience

We estimated the financial impact of Covid-19 on the Council is circa £52million this year,
comprising £16m additional costs and £36m income losses (as reported in the 2020/21 Budget
Monitoring — Month 9 to Executive). The Government have pledged to fund some of our Covid-
19 costs, however the funding still lags behind the expenditure. Further detail of the financial
risks presented by Covid-19 is in the Principal Risk Report here.

The Council has been able to set a balanced budget for 2021/22 (2021/22 Medium Term-Term
Financial Strategy), whilst continuing to make sure we are investing in the services and
infrastructure that our residents need. The budget allows us to support those who are hardest
hit by the pandemic and to work towards rebuilding a fairer borough. Alongside the immediate
humanitarian response, the Council will continue to focus our efforts on our four key priorities —
homes, jobs, environment and community safety. We will need to deliver £25m of savings and
efficiencies during next year to achieve this balanced position.

There is significant uncertainty over the ongoing impact of the pandemic into 2021/22. This is
perhaps most stark in terms of the potential impact on the Collection Fund (covering Council Tax
Receipts and Business Rates income). In relation to business rates, the Council currently receives
in the region of £10m more than its baseline funding level as a result of historical rises in the
rates income. Whilst this has been a positive in previous years, it also means that income can
drop further before Government support kicks in. More widely, confirmed Government support
for Covid related pressures only runs to the end of June 2021. This presents a risk should the
ongoing impact persist beyond that date in a significant way. The Council has mitigations within
its budget to manage to a degree however any pressures not funded by the Government, impact
on the sustainability of the Council.

Page 86
Page 2 of 4


https://democracy.islington.gov.uk/documents/g4040/Public%20reports%20pack%2029th-Sep-2020%2019.00%20Audit%20Committee%20and%20Audit%20Committee%20Advisory.pdf?T=10

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

EU Exit Resilience

As included in our last update to Committee in January 2021, the Council undertook
comprehensive planning and risk mitigation. This planning ensured that key risks arising from
UK’s Exit from European Union were managed effectively. The UK announced the agreement of
a trade deal with Europe in late December 2020.

The Brexit Resilience Group (BRG) has governed this activity and helped provide assurance that
the Council was as prepared as possible, given the continuing uncertainty and wider context of
Covid-19 and an economic downturn. The Brexit Resilience Group met in January 2021 to review
the immediate impact of the end of the transition period. The group reviewed the high velocity
risks (i.e. those most likely to materialise most quickly) and noted that these risks did not
materialise and we had not experienced any material impact.

In order to manage any residual risks and issues, the BRG (supported by the Council’s Risk
Manager) are currently reviewing the activity which will be required going forward. The group
is keen to ensure the mitigation of the risks and issues we can control. This work will include a
plan of how the Council will manage and report risks associated with trade deal going forward.

Risk Lead Engagement

We are currently in the process of consulting with circa 33 Principal Risk Leads across the Council.
The Principal Risk Leads work with risk sponsors (Corporate Directors) to determine what risk
information is required, and to monitor and evaluate the risks. They are responsible for
monitoring progress and updating their principal risks on the corporate risk register. The
Council’s Risk Manager is meeting with Risk Leads to obtain an update on the progress of
mitigating actions and to review the positioning and articulation of Principal Risks ahead of
discussion at Directorate Management Teams and the Corporate Management Board in March
and April 2021.

Implications
Financial implications:

The programme of work has been met from within the existing risk management budget. The
financial implications of individual principal risks are met by local budgets.

Legal Implications:

There are no legal implications arising from this report. Legal advice and support will be provided,
where necessary, in relation to individual risks.

Environmental Implications
There are no environmental implications arising from the recommendations in this report.

Resident Impact Assessment:

Page 87
Page 3 of 4



The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportunity, and foster
good relations, between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do
not share it (section 149 Equality Act 2010). The council has a duty to have due regard to the
need to remove or minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take
account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in public life. The
council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and promote understanding.

A Resident Impact Assessment has not been completed because the decision currently being
sought does not have direct impacts on residents.

9. Reason for recommendations

This report provides an overview of key risk management activities since the last update to
Committee in January 2021.

Final report clearance:

Signed by: David Hodgkinson

Date: 26 February 2021

Report Author: Nasreen Khan, Head of Internal Audit, Investigations and Risk
Management

Tel: 020 7974 2211

Email: Nasreen.Khan@islington.gov.uk

Financial Implications Author: Paul Clarke, Director of Finance
Tel: 0207 527 5636
Email: Paul.Clarke@islington.gov.uk

Legal Implications Author: David Daniels, Assistant Director of Law
Tel: 0207 527 3277
Email: : david.daniels@islington.gov.uk

REPORT ENDS

Page 88
Page 4 of 4


mailto:Nasreen.Khan@islington.gov.uk
mailto:Paul.Clarke@islington.gov.uk
mailto:david.daniels@islington.gov.uk

Agenda Item B3
& ISLINGTON

Finance
7 Newington Barrow Way
London N7 7EP

Report of: Corporate Director of Resources

Meeting of: Date: Ward(s):
Audit Committee 16" March 2021 All
Delete as appropriate | Non-exempt

SUBJECT: Internal Audit update — February 2021

1

1.1

2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

Synopsis

Audit Committee requested, at its meeting of 28th July 2020, that an Internal Audit update be
included on Committee’s agenda as a standing item. The purpose of this standing item is to
provide Committee with a summary update on internal audit activity at meetings where
Committee does not receive a comprehensive report. The paper is also intended to provide
Committee with an insight into internal audit activity that occurs outside the bi-annual reporting
cycle.

Recommendations

Committee is asked to note the update, which includes key activity since the Internal Audit
Interim Annual Report, which came to Committee on 25 January 2021.

Audit plan 2020-21

The Internal Audit Annual Report for 2020-21 is tabled for Committee in September 2021.
Committee noted the Internal Audit Interim Annual Report on 25th January 2021. Audits
continue to be delivered in line with target dates (see Appendix 1 of the report here).
Follow up activity

Follow up activity continues to be delivered (see Appendix 3 of the Internal Audit Interim
Annual Report here for details of follow ups scheduled for Quarter 4). A focussed period of

follow up activity is planned for April and May 2021.

Additional activity will be driven by the Controls Board (see item 5 below) to regularly revisit
any unimplemented actions and close them off outside the formal follow up cycle, where

Page 89
Page 1 of 3


https://democracy.islington.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=3903&Ver=4
https://democracy.islington.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=3903&Ver=4

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

8.1

9.1

9.2

possible. This will lead to improved oversight over the effectiveness of management responses
to audit recommendations.

Controls Board

A Controls Board has been set up and had its inaugural meeting in January 2021. The Director
of Finance chairs the Controls Board and its members include Internal Audit and representatives
from all directorates. The board’s role is to facilitate an ongoing dialogue between Internal
Audit and Directorate Management Teams around the progress of the Internal Audit plan. This
will cover emerging assurance themes, monitoring of audit actions and escalation of areas of
concern.

Audit plan 2021-22

The Internal Audit plan for 2021-22 is being drafted based on the Council’s Principal Risk Report
to provide assurance over the Council’s activities to mitigate Principal Risks. Covid-19 has
resulted in shifts in the delivery of services, changes in where and how people work, and
resourcing and financial challenges. As a result, a number of new Principal Risks were added to
the September 2020 Principal Risk Report. Based on available resource and an Internal Audit
assurance map, Internal Audit will aim to provide assurance on the actions to mitigate these
through delivery of the audit plan.

Additional work is being driven by Covid-19 grants from central government departments, some
of which require assurance Internal Audit assurance. Internal Audit are working with colleagues
in Finance and consulting with other boroughs to ensure that we have a complete picture of
which grants require such assurance.

The plan will also include cyclical audits of schools, Tenant Management Organisations, and key
financial systems.

Annual Governance Statement

The 2020-21 Annual Governance Statement will be drafted in Quarter 1 of 2021-22. Planning
for this exercise has begun, with particular consideration being given to the assessment of the
impact of Covid-19 on governance arrangements.

Resourcing

A new Principal Auditor joined the Internal Audit team in January 2021 and the team now has
no vacancies. A fully resourced team will support greater flexibility to respond to emerging
risks, and delivery of more timely audit and follow up activity.

Implications

Financial implications

The programme of work has been met from within the existing Internal Audit budget. The
financial implications of individual audit recommendations are met by local budgets.

Legal implications

Page 90
Page 2 of 3



9.3

9.4

10

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 sets out the regulatory framework for the audit of
local authorities. The Council must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account
public sector internal auditing standards or guidance (Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (Sl
2015/234), regulation 5). The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 provide a set of
public sector internal audit standards, which are supplemented for local government by CIPFA
standard setting guidance.

Environmental implications
There are no environmental implications arising from the recommendation in this report.

Resident Impact Assessment

The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportunity, and foster
good relations, between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do
not share it (section 149 Equality Act 2010). The council has a duty to have due regard to the
need to remove or minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to
take account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in public life.
The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and promote understanding.
A Resident Impact Assessment has not been completed because the decision currently being
sought does not have direct impacts on residents.

Reason for recommendations

10.1 To note key Internal Audit activities since the last update to Committee in January 2021.

Final report clearance:

Signed by:

David Hodgkinson

Date: 26 February 2021

Report Author: Nasreen Khan, Head of Internal Audit, Investigations and Risk
Management

Tel: 020 7974 2211

Email: Nasreen.Khan@islington.gov.uk

Financial Implications Author: Paul Clarke, Director of Finance

Tel:

020 7527 5636

Email: Paul.Clarke@islington.gov.uk
Legal Implications Author: David Daniels, Assistant Director of Law

Tel:

020 7527 3277

Email: : david.daniels@islington.gov.uk

REPORT ENDS

Page 91
Page 3 of 3


mailto:Nasreen.Khan@islington.gov.uk
mailto:Paul.Clarke@islington.gov.uk
mailto:david.daniels@islington.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem B4
¥ ISLINGTON

Resources
7 Newington Barrow Way
London N7 7EP

Report of: Corporate Director of Resources

Meeting of: Date: Ward(s):
Audit Committee 16 March 2021 N/A
Delete as Non-exempt

appropriate

THE APPENDIX TO THIS REPORT IS NOT FOR PUBLICATION

The appendix to this report is exempt and not for publication as it contains the following
category of exempt information as specified in Paragraph 3, Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972, namely: Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information).

SUBJECT: Revocation of Exit Payment Regulations
1. Synopsis

1.1  This report provides an update on the impact of the revocation of the Restriction of Public
Sector Exit Payments Regulations 2020 on individuals affected since the Regulations came into
force. The financial impact for the individuals is set out in the exempt appendix.

2. Recommendations

2.1 To note the revocation of the Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments Regulations 2020

2.2 To note that any decisions relating to enacting the new provisions during the period since the
Cap was introduced are no longer relevant and changes to the council’s redundancy
procedures to allow that flexibility are not required

2.3 To note the fact that the council is complying with the HMT Directions in ensuring that affected
staff receive all sums that have not or would not have been paid as a result of the application
of the 2020 Regulations

Page 93
Page 1 of 3



3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

Background

On 25 January 2021, the Audit Committee received a report on '7The introduction of exit
payments cap on redundancyyefficiency retirements’setting out the impact of nhew Regulations
on the Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments. The Regulations had the effect of capping
payments for exits such as redundancy at £95,000 and included pension strain costs.

Since the committee, the government has revoked the regulations as they had unintended
consequences for affected staff.

The exempt appendix sets out the actions taken to comply with the provision in the revoking
regulations "to pay to former employees or the relevant pension fund all sums that were not
paid as a result of the application of the 2020 Regulations”.

Implications

Financial implications

This information is contained within the exempt appendix. The Council’s s151 officer is satisfied
that the costs can be contained within the Council’s budget.

Legal Implications
The actions proposed in the exempt appendix are appropriate.

Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon
Islington by 2030

None arising from the content of this report.
Resident Impact Assessment

The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportunity, and
foster good relations, between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those
who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 2010). The council has a duty to have due regard
to the need to remove or minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps
to take account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in public
life. The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and promote
understanding.

A Resident Impact Assessment has not been completed because the decision currently being
sought does not have direct impacts on residents.

Reason for recommendations

To ensure that the most appropriate and reasonable outcome is achieved for the employees
and the Council.

Page 94
Page 2 of 3



Appendices

Exempt Appendix 1 — Revocation of Exit Payment Regulations (In the matter of employees)

Final report clearance:

Signed by:

David Hodgkinson Corporate Director of Resources Date 8 March 2021
Report author: Julie Foy

Tel: 07812 491844

Email: julie.foy@islington.gov.uk

Page 95
Page 3 of 3


mailto:julie.foy@islington.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item B5
& |SLINGTON

Internal Audit

Finance and Resources

7 Newington Barrow Way,
London N7 9EP

Report of:  Corporate Director - Resources

Audit Committee Date: 16™ March 2021 Ward(s): All
Delete as Exempt (Appendix)
appropriate

Part of the report is not for publication because it contains exempt information under Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972) Paragraphs 1, 2, 7 Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, namely: Information
relating to an individual. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual and Information relating
to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.

THE APPENDIX TO THIS REPORT IS NOT FOR PUBLICATION

SUBJECT: Whistleblowing Report — 15t April 2020 to 31°' January 2021
1. Synopsis

1.1  The report seeks to provide assurance that whistleblowing arrangements are in place and operating
effectively, and that investigating fraud is an integral part of the Council’s Anti-Fraud Strategy. The
Council’'s Whistleblowing Officer is the Head of Internal Audit, Investigations and Risk Management.
Whistleblowing arrangements are a key element of the Council’s overall governance arrangements. It is
the mechanism to “empower the honest majority” in the fight against fraud and corruption and is an integral
part of the Council’s Anti-Fraud Strategy.

1.2 Whistleblowing allows employees, members, contractors and others, to raise concerns surrounding
potential fraud and corruption. There are separate reporting mechanisms for adult and child protection
allegations. The Whistleblowing policy was reviewed and updated in May 2020 and January 2021 in line
with good practice. Whistleblowing information is located within the Human Resources policies and
procedures section of the Council’s intranet. The report gives detail of referrals made between 1%t April
2020 and 31% January 2021.

2. Recommendations

Page 97



2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

Committee is asked to note the contents of the report.

Background

Effective whistleblowing arrangements are a key element of effective governance arrangements within
the Council.

Implications

Financial implications:
There are no specific financial implications associated with this report.

Legal Implications:

The original Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 provisions, inserted in the Employment Rights Act
1996, were amended by the Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act 2013 to introduce a new public
interest requirement. The Council must have regard to the Government's Whistleblowing Guidance for
Employers and Code of Practice (2015).

It is good practice to review regularly the referrals made under the Whistleblowing policy to provide
assurance that they have been dealt with appropriately.

Environmental Implications
There are no environmental implications arising from the recommendations in this report.

Resident Impact Assessment:

The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination,
harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportunity, and foster good relations, between
those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not share it (section 149 Equality
Act 2010). The council has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or minimise disadvantages,
take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities, and
encourage people to participate in public life. The council must have due regard to the need to tackle
prejudice and promote understanding.

A Resident Impact Assessment has not been completed because the decision currently being sought
does not have direct impacts on residents.

Reasons for the recommendations / decision:

The report presents an update on whistleblowing referrals received from 1%t April 2020 to 315 January
2021.

The Council is obliged under the Public Interest Disclosure Act to maintain a whistleblowing policy,
designed to encourage staff, members, contractors and others to raise concerns without fear of reprisal.

Appendices:

Appendix A — Whistleblowing Monitoring Report (Exempt)

Page 98



Final report clearance:

Date:

Signed by: 26 February 2021

Dave Hodgkinson — Corporate Director — Resources

Report Author: Nasreen Khan, Head of Internal Audit, Investigations and Risk Management
Tel: 020 7974 2211
Email: nasreen.khan@islington.gov.uk

Financial Implications Author: Paul Clarke, Director of Finance
Tel: 07931 572314
Email: Paul.Clarke@islington.gov.uk

Legal Implications Author: Rob Willis, Chief Corporate and Commercial Litigation Lawyer
Tel: 0207 527 3302
Email: Robert.Willis@islington.gov.uk

REPORT ENDS

Page 99


mailto:nasreen.khan@islington.gov.uk
mailto:Paul.Clarke@islington.gov.uk
mailto:Robert.Willis@islington.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item E1

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item E2

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	A4 Minutes of previous meeting
	A5 Appointments to Pensions Board and Personnel Sub-Committee
	B1 External Auditor reports
	Appendix 1 - LB Islington Annual Audit Letter
	Appendix 2 - VFM slides
	Appendix 3 - Islington Council and PFund 2020-21 LG audit plan - for comment Mar 2021
	Appendix 4 - General Enquiries to Management

	B2 Risk management update - February 2021
	B3 Internal Audit update - February 2021
	B4 Revocation of Exit Payment Regulations
	B5 Whistleblowing report - 1 April 2020 to 31 January 2021
	E1 Whistleblowing report - 1 April 2020 to 31 January 2021 - exempt appendix
	E2 Revocation of Exit Payment Regulations - exempt appendix

